
Agenda 
Meeting: Finance, Risk. Audit and Standards Committee 

Venue: The Old Vicarage, Bondgate, Helmsley, YO62 5BP 

Date: Tuesday 31 August 2021, 10am 

Business 

1. Election of Chair to take office until the first meeting of Finance, Risk, Audit and
Standards Committee following the Annual General Meeting of the Authority.

2. Election of Deputy Chair to take office until the first meeting of Finance, Risk, Audit
and Standards Committee following the Annual General Meeting of the Authority.

3. Apologies for absence

4. Public minutes of meeting held on 24 May 2021  (page 4)

5. Members are reminded that it is their responsibility to declare the nature of any
personal, prejudicial and/or disclosable interests relating to any agenda item
immediately prior to its consideration and are encouraged to complete a written
declaration using the form provided.

6. Emergency evacuation procedure – The chair to inform members of the public of the
emergency evacuation procedure.

7. Exclusion of the public from the meeting during consideration of each of the items of
business shown in Column 1 of the following table on the grounds that each involves
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraph of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 specified in Column 2:-

Item No on the Agenda Paragraph No 
16 1 & 2 
17 1 & 2 

8. Health and safety update  (page 12)

9. Grant Thornton - External audit update, ISA260 report (page 15)

10. Audit 2020/21 Fraud, estimates and judgements  (page 52)

11. Quarter 1 financial update  (page 74)



12. Corporate risk register  (page 87)

13. External funding  (page 108)

14. IT update (page 114)

15. North York Moors Trust action plan and future resources  (page 116)

Private Business - Minutes/Reports Circulated To Members Only 

16. Private minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2021.

17. Complaints and compliments update

18. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by reason of special
circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

Tom Hind 
Chief Executive (National Park Officer) 

Press contact: Nina Beadle, Media and Communications Officer, 01439 772577 

Note: 

• The Authority allows the recording and reporting of public meetings but asks
that any party wishing to do so informs the Authority in advance of the meeting.

• Recording and reporting that disrupts the meeting is not allowed. Persons
expressly refusing consent, children and vulnerable adults cannot be filmed or
photographed.

• The existing rules relating to confidential and exempt information, defamation,
data protection and public order apply. The Authority accepts no liability
whatsoever for the recording and reporting carried out by other parties.

• Members are reminded to turn all electronic equipment to silent mode, including
mobile phones, laptop computers and tablets. Please note that only information
that is available to Members during the Committee meeting should be accessed
from a computer in the interests of sound decision making.

• Vanessa Burgess should be notified of any apologies.

• Please ensure when parking in the car park that you have not caused an
obstruction which could prevent emergency vehicles accessing the building.

• This agenda is available on the website www.northyorkmoors.org.uk

• This agenda is available in large print on request.
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Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

Membership, including Ex-officio Chair and Deputy Chair of the Authority 

- Sec of State Sec of State 
Parish 

Unitary/District NYCC 

Names Patrick James 
Andrew Scott 

Bob Marley 
Colin 
Williamson 

Peter Berry 
Jim Bailey 
Shaun Moody 

David Jeffels 
Caroline 
Patmore 

Number of 
members 

4 5 

Total 
membership 

9 - 

Quorum 5 (includes at least one Sec of State and one Local Authority Member) 
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North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, risk, audit and standards committee 

Item 4, Public Minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2021 

Present: 

Jim Bailey, Peter Berry, Malcolm Bowes, Patrick James, David Jeffels, Caroline Patmore, 
Andrew Scott. 

Apologies: 

Shaun Moody 

Officers in attendance: 

Tom Hind (CEO), Chris France (Director of Planning), Michael Graham (Director of Park 
Services), Ian Nicholls (Head of Corporate Services), Harry Baross (Climate Change and 
Carbon Reduction Officer), Tom Stephenson (External Funding Officer), Pete Williams 
(Head of Finance), Lisa Dixon (Monitoring Officer), Gareth Mills (Grant Thornton - 
Auditors), Ian Morton (Veritau - Audit Manager), Vanessa Burgess (Committees Officer) 

Copies of all documents considered are in the minute book 

Caroline Patmore, Deputy Chair of FRASC, chaired the meeting. Caroline welcomed 
everyone to the first face to face meeting since the start of the covid pandemic in 
March 2020. 

14/21 Minutes 

That the public minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 2021, be taken as 
read and be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

15/21 Members Interests 

Members were reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interests relating to any agenda item prior to its consideration. 

16/21 Exclusion of the public 

Resolved: That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of Items 17 and 18 on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972. 

17/21 Health and safety update 

Considered: 

The report of the Head of Corporate Services 
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Ian Nicholls informed members that: 

• Sickness absence had reduced as a result of home working during the
various lockdown periods.

• A number of staff had contracted covid, though not via the workplace.
• Lateral Flow testing had only been deemed necessary for Education staff

who are working with schools.
• Surprise virtual chats organised via the Authority’s HR Assistant during

lockdown had proved popular with staff with 30-40 colleagues attending.
• From 21 June, working patterns for staff will probably be 50% in the office

and 50% homebased working.
• H&S refresher training had been added to the H&S action plan, with internal

auditors to check compliance.

One member queried refresher training for those staff returning to work after 
being furloughed or away from practical work for an extended period due to 
lockdown. Ian advised that this hadn’t really been an issue for the Authority as 
most staff doing practical tasks outdoors had continued to do so throughout 
the pandemic. In the case of volunteers returning after lockdown, Task Day 
Leaders/staff made sure volunteers had thorough safety briefing prior to 
undertaking any tasks.  

Resolved: Members, noted the contents of the report and commented as 
indicated above. 

18/21 Authority carbon footprint and decarbonisation 

Considered: 

The report of the Climate Change and Carbon Reduction Officer 

Harry Baross, gave the members a short presentation on his work to date and 
work plans going forward. He shared information on the Authority’s current 
carbon footprint including; renewable electricity tariff, the Authority’s fleet of 
vehicles, office/visitor centre heating and the s property review. Small World 
Consulting had been commissioned to provide footprint reporting for the wider 
NP area which will feed information into the Authority’s Management Plan. 
Future work would include annual reporting to members, impact of volunteer 
travel/commuting post covid and development of sustainable procurement 
principles. 

Members welcomed Harry’s appointment and the work he was undertaking on 
behalf of the Authority. Members/Officers commented on: 

• Cost and timescales on changing heating systems, vehicles, reviewing
property and upgrading buildings.

• Scope Framework (Local Govt Association) – look at pre and post
working/commuting to make informed decisions on future ways of working

• The implications for the National Park Management Plan as well as our own
activities as an Authority
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• Playing our part in meeting North Yorkshire’s devolution ambitions to be
carbon negative.

• The use of the Authority’s land in offsetting our emissions.

Action: HB to look at Authority’s land ownership/carbon footprint 

Resolved: Members noted the work done to establish the Authority’s carbon 
footprint and identify methods to achieve net zero. 

Members noted the  Delivery Plan for Climate Leadership made by English  
National Parks in 2020, which including a target for individual Authorities to be 
net zero by 2030. 

19/21 Corporate risk register update 

Considered: 

The report of the Head of Corporate Services 

Resolved: Members noted the contents of the report and appendix and were 
satisfied with progress. 

20/21 Financial outturn 2021/22 

Considered: 

The report of the Chief Finance Officer 

Pete Williams gave the report to members, highlighting the following: 

• Contribution to reserves at the end of the year of £109k against original
budget, latest budget and Q3 forecast contribution from reserves of
£429k, £281k and £350k respectively.

• Higher income from Apprentices, Investment Interest, Planning, car
parking and covid support grants.

• Lower spending on PAWS, Payroll and car park replacement machines.
• £311K recommended carry forward.
• Overall income down on original budget but improved position through the

year.
• Reserves increased from £2.6m to £3.8m.
• Land of Iron project officially completed 31 March 2021, but a further

£190k of work will be delivered in 2021/22.
• Ryevitalise project has faced challenges with covid-19 but still expects to

meet all outcomes by the end of the project. A formal extension of 12
months is being requested.

• Sutton Bank project has been a major success in 2020/21 with the new
cycling facilities on site already proving popular.

• The new cashless car park machines were put in place in April.
• S106 delivered £1.18m of spend in year. Shortfalls against budget were in

tourism, core policy D and signage as well as some landscape and ecology
projects.
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• Car parking income at 58% of original budget levels. 
• Proposal to allocate out the unallocated reserve to specific projects. 

 
 Members talked about: 

• Performance of visitor centres during the pandemic. 
• Installation/performance of new car parking machines noting some 

confusion on signage at Chopgate car park. 
• Monitoring reserves and spend over the year with good practice being to 

try and spend evenly. It is important to get S106 money out quickly. 
• Thanked Pete, Sandra and whole finance team for their hard work. 

 

Resolved: Members noted the content of the report and approved the carry 
forwards as laid out in appendix 5. Members approved the allocation of the 
general unallocated reserve which includes the 2020/21 surplus to specific 
reserves as laid out in point 8.5 of the report. 

21/21 External funding 

 Considered: 

 The report of the External Funding Officer  

 Tom Stephenson updated members on the following: 

• External funding is available, but tending to be short period funding at the 
moment. 

• Application submitted to Natural Environment Investment Readiness Fund 
• UK Community Renewal Fund (replacing EFS funding), SBC and Hambleton 

prioritised. 
 

Decarbonisation of Authority buildings: preparing quotes for Sutton Bank, Old 
Vicarage, Saw Mill Lane Depot and Moors Centre. The Authority has registered 
its interest for when there is an opportunity for a further round of funding,  

One member asked about targeting Nature Recovery and catchment areas. It 
was agreed that it may be a good way to unlock opportunities, collaborate with 
others and highlight the net zero contribution they can make. 

New generation of opportunities post European funding, need for the Authority 
to assert its agenda.  
 

Action: BF/EI to investigate nature recovery and catchment area ideas 

Resolved: Members approved the contents of the report and agreed the 
current work being done to secure external funding. 

22/21 Internal audit review of findings 20/21 and audit plan 21/22  

 Considered: 
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The report of the Auditors 

Ian Morton, Audit Manager for Veritau reported back to members on the 
internal audit review findings for 20/21 and the plan of work for 21/22, which 
would include cyber security, income collection and H&S training as part of the 
HR audit. 

A number of members spoke about the planned 5 day cyber security work, 
scheduled to take place in Sept/Oct 2021 and whether it might be more 
prudent to do sooner. 

Action: TH to seek recommendation from Simon Baum IT manager on the suggestion to 
bring forward the cyber security work. 

Members thanked the internal auditors for their report. 

23/21 Grant Thornton update 

Gareth Mills updated members on key matters, risk areas and value for money 
(VfM) work. The bulk of the audit work would take place in July, with 
completion/sign off due at the end of September. VfM work update would be 
brought back to FRASC on 15 November. The audit fee variation was £5,700 
(2019-20 now approved by PSAA). Proposed fee variation for 2020-21 was 
£7,000 (needing approval from PSAA) with higher fees a result of additional 
detailed work on land/buildings, pension fund and VfM arrangements review. 
The Redmond Review had also obliged audit firms to undertake additional work. 

The Chair thanked Grant Thornton for their comprehensive report. 

24/21 The financial management code 

Considered: 

The report of the Chief Financial Officer 

Pete Williams advised on the Code, published by CIPFA in Oct 2019, with first 
full year compliance required in 2021/22. 6 principles underpinned by 17 
standards. A future report on this subject will be brought back to FRASC. 

Members agreed it was a good process to go through and asked if there were 
any particular headline issues. 

Pete Williams advised the meeting that the Authority did already largely 
comply, but more work would be needed on the Property Review and our Asset 
Management. 

Resolved: Members noted the report and commented and approved the 
actions identified for improving compliance with the Code, as set out in 
appendix 3. 

25/21 Update for Monitoring Officer and standards process 

Considered: 
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The report of the Monitoring Officer 

Lisa Dixon updated members on the model code of conduct, saying that the 
Authority had an excellent record on governance and transparency and 
previous refresher training with members on conduct had gone well. Lisa was 
grateful to members for attending the training and for their ongoing 
mindfulness of risks around conduct and expressing the importance for 
ongoing training. Since the last round of training, Lisa had met with the 
Authority’s new CEO, Tom Hind and previous Chair of FRASC, Jeremy Walker to 
review the effectiveness of the refresher training. 

Points made by members for Officers consideration, included: 

• Draft minutes of meetings should be circulated as soon as possible after
meetings.

• Good chairing was key to achieving clarity re: decisions made, especially
where different from Officers recommendations.

• Useful to share reports or minutes of forum meetings, possibly by adding as
formal items to Authority agendas.

• The new Management Plan plus accompanying Authority Strategy and
Business Plan should lead to a review of governance structures.

• Further discussions on the Authority’s approach to scrutiny.

Action: Officers to take guidance from the Monitoring officer on reviewing the 
Authority’s Code of Conduct  

Action: Lisa Dixon/Chair of FRASC to liaise with regard to further Member training. 

Resolved: Members noted the contents of the report, including the 
recommendations for best practice, and that further reports will be brought to 
full Authority in due course seeking approval for any appropriate changes to the 
Authority’s Code of Conduct.  

Requested that the Authority’s Monitoring Officer liaise with the Chair of 
FRASC and provide further training on ethical standards to members of the 
Authority. The first part of such training has been arranged for 29 July 2021. 

26/21 Annual governance statement (AGS) 

Considered: 

The report of the Head of Finance and Head of Corporate Services 

Ian Nicholls, Head of Corporate Services updated Members on the AGS. 

Members commented on: 

• Local Government reorganisation/Govt arrangements.
• H&S, section 4 of the report to include some reference to Authority staff.
• National Landscapes Service/Glover.
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Action: IN to include additional actions as indicated above and include in Statement of 
Accounts in October. 

Resolved: That Members review the Draft Annual Governance Statement 
attached at appendix 1 and make any suggestions for amendment to be 
incorporated into the accounts for approval in October. 

27/21 Annual treasury management and prudential indicators outturn report 
2020/21 

Resolved: Members noted the performance of the Treasury Management 
operation during 2020/21 and the outturn position on Prudential Indicators. 

.......................................................................................................................................................................... (Chair) 

31 August 2021 
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Public Summary of Items considered "in private" at the 
meeting of the Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards 
Committee on 24 May 2021 

Private minutes 

Members agreed that the private minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 
2021, having been printed and circulated, be taken as read and be confirmed and 
signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

Complaints and compliments update 

Members noted the report of complaints and compliments registered in Quarter 
4 2020/21. 
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North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

31 August 2021 

Item 8, Health and safety  

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To update Members on health and safety activity during 2021/22.

2. Background

2.1 As Members will be aware, the Authority has a systematic approach to the formal
reporting of Health and Safety matters to Members. This reflects the high
priority that both Members and Officers place on health and safety. Quarterly
reports to FRASC are provided and give a good opportunity for Member scrutiny
of activity in this key area.

2.2 The Health and Safety Action Plan for 2021/22 was signed off by NPA at the end
of March and progress updates will be given at each FRASC during the year.

3. Sickness absence

3.1 Members will recall the low levels of sickness absence reported for 2020/21 and
Officers’ explanation of the likely reasons for this. The first 5 months of 2021/22
have seen similar levels of absence.

3.2 The late spring and early summer saw a significant number of staff having to 
self-isolate due to requests from the NHS test and trace team. A number of 
colleagues also contracted Covid 19. Thankfully all recovered quickly and most 
were able to continue working from home while self-isolating. In these cases we 
do not believe that the transmission of the virus occurred in our workplaces.  

3.3 The Authority has continued to encourage all staff to be vaccinated when they 
have the opportunity and has given paid time off for appointments where they 
couldn’t be organised outside working hours. 

4. Health and safety management during Covid 19

4.1 Visitors have been welcomed back into the National Park Centres since 19 July.
Prior to this, there was considerable discussion with staff about how this should
be managed and how the Authority would approach the question of whether
masks should be worn inside or not. The perspex screens around the information
desks have been retained for the time being and staff continue to wear masks
when on the ‘shop floor’ during opening hours. The messaging to visitors has
been consistent with national guidance, and has not included an insistence that
masks should be worn by visitors. The reason for this is that Officers felt that this
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sort of rule was unenforceable and had potential to lead staff into difficult 
situations with visitors who might refuse. Staff have reported that the measures 
taken have been successful and visitors have been respectful of each other and 
our staff.  

4.2 While it was expected that restrictions on office working would be lifted on 21 
June, this was delayed nationally until July. It is planned that the blended working 
approach for the Authority’s office based staff will commence in September. 
This will assist those who have found the isolation of home working difficult and 
also provide a number of operational benefits.  While the Authority’s senior 
managers will set the framework, it will be upto individual managers to determine 
how this should work best within their teams.  

4.3 Volunteering numbers are steadily increasing as line managers continue to have 
confidence that the improving national picture means that tasks developed for 
volunteers will be delivered and can be done so in a way that is close to normal 
practice.  

5.  Accidents and near misses  

5.1 Since May FRASC, there have only been a small number of minor incidents 
reported. The warm weather through most of the summer months has resulted 
in some tasks being rescheduled and one practical task, involving volunteers, 
was called off on the day due to the heat and the fact that this caused at least 
one member of the group to become unwell. The Health and Safety Group have 
discussed the implications of warmer weather and the need to treat this as 
seriously as adverse weather in the winter. This is, no doubt, a subject that will be 
returned to in the coming years.  

6. 2021/22 Health and Safety Action plan 

6.1 The plan was approved by NPA at the end of March and work on the various 
actions has commenced. Progress against each element of the action plan is 
included below;  

• Assess Corporate Health and Safety Performance using the LGA matrix and 
take actions as appropriate. The CEO and Directors have a planned date to 
discuss this in the Autumn, with the session being facilitated by a Health and 
Safety manager from NYCC; 

• Assess the effectiveness of volunteer Task Day Leader (TDL) training by; 
organising regular meetings of TDLs with health & safety as an agenda item; 
regular spot checking of activities which are led by TDLs; Regular meetings 
of TDLs are scheduled. A model ‘tool talk’ has been developed and is being 
recorded/shared to help improve the consistency of approach to this key 
part of volunteering tasks. 

• Develop a formal register of relevant health and safety legislation and 
stating briefly how the Authority is complying with it by 31 December. As a 
starting point, the Health and Safety Group have approved a register of the 
Authority’s key policies, together with a review schedule.  
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• Consider how to properly manage sickness absence in the context of a long 
term change in working pattern. Revised policy to be in place by 31 
December. Best practice guidance from elsewhere has been assessed and 
will be used to develop the Authority’s approach. 

• Reinvigorate the process of spot checking with formal targets for Directors 
to cascade through their Departments and regular updates on progress at 
monthly SLT meetings. Discussed at SLT and all members of that group are 
undertaking spot checks on their teams as appropriate. 

• Mental Health First Aiders to continue work throughout the year on a series 
of initiatives designed to support mental health. Mental health is a standing 
item on all Health and Safety Group meetings and a number of initiatives, 
previously reported to Members are ongoing. Mental Health first aiders have 
had recent refresher training.  

• The incoming Head of Recreation and Rangers Services to review and, if 
necessary, update the written practices for maintaining machinery reported 
to members in November 2020. Resources have been found for one of the 
Maintenance Ranger team to work an additional day per week until April 
2022 to ensure that there is a consistent approach to the servicing and 
maintenance of machinery and that service records are kept in a consistent 
and accurate manner. Early signs are that this approach of dedicating time to 
this key area is one that should be continued.  

7. Financial and staffing implications 

7.1 There are no significant additional financial or staff issues related to the contents 
of this report. Budgetary provision is sufficient to pay for all appropriate health 
and safety training and personal protective equipment.  

8. Legal and sustainability implications 

8.1 There are no legal and sustainability implications to the contents of this report. 

9. Recommendation  

9.1 That Members  

• Note the contents of this report, making any comments that they wish to. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Ian Nicholls 
Head of Corporate Services 
01439 772700 

Background documents to this report 

1. FRASC Reports 2020/21 and 2020 Accident Investigation reports available on 
request. 
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Net pension liability – £7.51m
•

•

•

•

•

•



Green

Assumption Actuary 
Value

PwC 
range

Assessment

Discount rate 2.10% 2.10% 

Pension increase rate 2.70% 2.60% -
2.70%



Salary growth 3.95% 3.60% -
4.20%



Life expectancy – Males 
currently aged 45 / 65

23.6 years
21.9 years

22.5 – 24.7
20.8 – 23.0



Life expectancy – Females 
currently aged 45 / 65

25.8 years
24.0 years

24.0 – 27.2
23.5 – 26.0
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Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

35

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf
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Independent auditor's report to the members of North 
York Moors National Park Authority

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of North York Moors National Park Authority 
(the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the 
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 
2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of 
practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the 

Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are 

independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Chief Financial 
Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Chief Financial Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with 

the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 
accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 that the Authority’s financial statements 

shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks 
associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In doing so we 
had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements 
and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on the 
application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the 
reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s 

disclosures over the going concern period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 
significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 

at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Chief Financial 
Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is appropriate. 

The responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with respect to going concern are 
described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Chief Finance Officer and Those 

Charged with Governance for the financial statements’ section of this report.

We anticipate we will provide the Authority with an unmodified ‘clean’ accounts opinion, with the inclusion of an ‘emphasis of matter’ regarding the valuation of property, 

plant and equipment.
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Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of land and buildings

We draw attention to the Statement of Accounting Policies Note 21 of the financial 
statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of 
the Authority’s land and buildings as at 31 March 2021. As disclosed in the Statement 

of Accounting Policies Note 21 to the financial statements, the potential impact of the 
Coronavirus pandemic on property values has led to a material valuation uncertainty 
on property valuation being disclosed in the Authority’s property valuer’s report. Our 

opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts and the 
Annual Governance Statement, other than the financial statements, our auditor’s report 

thereon.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required 
to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 
Audit Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 
on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are 
required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with 
‘delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published 

by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which 
we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual 
Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily 
addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published 
together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial 
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of 
the audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 
contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Chief Financial Officer and Those Charged 
with Governance for the financial statements
As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the 
Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial 
affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration 
of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer. The Chief 
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which 
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal 
control as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for 
assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the 
Authority will no longer be provided.
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The Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee (FRAS) is Those Charged with 
Governance. Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the 
Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting 
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to 
detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the 
inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements 
in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly 
planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including 
fraud is detailed below: 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are 
applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant ,which are 
directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements, are those 
related to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards as 
interpreted and adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, The Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 Local 
Government Act 2003 and the Local Government Act 1972.

• We enquired of senior officers and the Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards 
Committee, concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

− the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;
− the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and
− the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or 

non-compliance with laws and regulations.
• We enquired of management, internal audit, and the Finance, Risk, Audit and 

Standards Committee, whether they were aware of any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material 

misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives 

and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the 
evaluation of the risk of the risk of management override of controls and 
fraudulent revenue recognition. We determined that the principal risks were in 
relation to:

− Journals and transactions outside the course of business.
− management estimates in particular those relating to land and buildings 

valuations and the valuation of the net pension fund liability
• Our audit procedures involved:

− evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has 
in place to prevent and detect fraud;

− journal entry testing, with a focus on unusual and high risk journals 
made during the year and accounts production stage; and

− considering the reasonableness of estimates and judgements made by 
management.

− challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its 
significant accounting estimates in respect of land and buildings and 
defined benefit pensions liability valuations;

− assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and 
regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement 
item.
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• These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that 
the financial statements were free from fraud or error. However, detecting 
irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting 
those that result from error, as those irregularities that result from fraud may 
involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional

• misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and 
regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, 
the less likely we would become aware of it.

• The team communications in respect of potential non-compliance with relevant 
laws and regulations, including the potential for fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition, and the significant accounting estimates related to land 
and buildings valuations and defined benefit pensions liability valuations. 

• Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and 
capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement 
team's:

− understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a 
similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and 
participation

− knowledge of the local government sector
− understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the 

Authority including:
− the provisions of the applicable legislation
− guidance issued by CIPFA, LASAAC and SOLACE
− the applicable statutory provisions.

• In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an 
understanding of:

− the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and 

expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to 
understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected 
financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in 
risks of material misstatement.

− the Authority's control environment, including the policies and 
procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources
Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we 
have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.  

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will 
be reported in our commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual 

Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be 
reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this work does 

not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2021.

Responsibilities of the Authority
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness 
of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, 
nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 
effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 
to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. This 
guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. 

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to 
structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:
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• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to
ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and
properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses
information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and
delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for
each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support
our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking 

our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant
weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in
certification of completion of the audit
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for North York
Moors National Park Authority for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit
Practice until we have completed our work on the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and issued our
Auditor’s Annual Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance
with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and as set out in paragraph
43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and
the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Signature:

Gareth Mills, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Leeds

Date:

46



[LETTER TO BE WRITTEN ON CLIENT HEADED PAPER]

Grant Thornton UK LLP
No 1 Whitehall Riverside
Leeds LS1 4BN

27 September 2021

Dear Sirs

North York Moors National Park Authority
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial 
statements of North York Moors National Park Authority for the year ended 31 March 
2021 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Authority financial 
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 and applicable law. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as 
we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Authority’s 

financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 ("the Code"); in particular the 
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the 
Authority and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in 
the financial statements.

iii. The Authority has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any 
regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including 
those measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material 
judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly 
based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial 
statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and 
considering alternative, methods, assumptions or source data that would be 
equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why these alternatives 
were rejected in favour of the estimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, 
the data and the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting 
estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, 
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the Code and 
adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 
valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits 
disclosures are consistent with our knowledge.  We confirm that all settlements 
and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.  We also 
confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and 
properly accounted for. 

vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of the Authority has been assigned, pledged or 

mortgaged
c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or 

non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure.
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viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted
for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Code.

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and
disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The
Authority’s financial statements have been amended for these misstatements,

misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

xi. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your
Audit Findings Report. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these
misstatements brought to our attention as they are immaterial to the results of
the Authority and its financial position at the year. The financial statements are
free of material misstatements, including omissions.

xii. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards.

xiii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment and cashflow forecasts in light
of the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue to believe that the Authority’s financial

statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified
any material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that:

a. the nature of the Authority means that, notwithstanding any intention to
liquidate the Authority or cease its operations in their current form, it will
continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be
expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and
preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis will still
provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its
financial statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a)
above; and

c. the Authority’s system of internal control has not identified any events or

conditions relevant to going concern.
We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Authority's ability to
continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements.

Information Provided

xv. We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the Authority’s financial statements such as records,

documentation and other matters;
b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose

of your audit; and
c. access to persons within the Authority via remote arrangements, in

compliance with the nationally specified social distancing requirements
established by the government in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.
from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

xvi. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which
management is aware.

xvii. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

xviii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud
that we are aware of and that affects the Authority and involves:

a. management;
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial

statements.
xx. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or

suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

xxi. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements.
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xxii. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority's related parties and all 
the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims 
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

xxiv. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the 
Authority's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we 
are not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

xxv. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of 
the Authority's financial and operating performance over the period covered by 
the Authority’s financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted at the National Park Authority 
meeting on 27 September 2021.

Yours faithfully

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Signed on behalf of North York Moors National Park Authority
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North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

Tuesday 31 August 2021 

Item 10, Audit 2020/21 – fraud, estimates and judgements 

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To provide Members with an overview of the estimates, judgements and
assessments of risk that form part of the external audit of the 2020/21 accounts.

2. Background

2.1 The report forms part of the audit for the 2020/21 accounts. It covers areas of
decision making in the accounts including estimates, judgements and
approaches to risk. It is designed to ensure that both FRASC and Officers are
fulfilling their responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process.

3. Estimates, judgements and risk

3.1 This appendices contain a series of questions on each of the areas listed below
and the response we have received from North York Moors National Park
Authority’s management. The FRAS Committee should consider and approve
whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether
there are any further comments it wishes to make. Areas covered are:-

• Appendix 1 - General enquiries of management
• Appendix 2 - Fraud
• Appendix 3 - Laws and regulations
• Appendix 4 - Related parties
• Appendix 5 - Accounting estimates
• Appendix 6 – Valuation of plant, property and equipment
• Appendix 7 – Valuation of the pensions liability
• Appendix 8 – Depreciation Charge
• Appendix 9 – S106 Accruals

4. Financial and staffing implications

4.1 None beyond the content of the report.

5. Contribution to National Park Management Plan

5.1 It is a requirement for the Authority to produce an annual set of accounts with an
unqualified external audit opinion. These accounts have to contain and
appropriate approach to estimates where judgement is required. In addition,
good governance and approach to risk is fundamental to a financially sustainable
Authority and delivering management plan outcomes.
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6. Legal and sustainability implications

6.1 There are no legal issues as a result of this report.

7. Recommendations

7.1 That Members approve the content of the report.

Contact Officer:  
Pete Williams 
Chief Finance Officer to the North York Moors National Park Authority 
01439 772700

53



Appendix 1 - General enquiries of management 

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that will have a significant impact on the financial statements for 2020/21? 

A. Covid-19 pandemic (loss of income and mitigation through costs) – no significant impact on the financial statements but has impacted on levels of 
income and costs in 20/21 compared to pre-pandemic expectations. Valuations of assets, in particular Sutton Bank which has been valued on a different 
basis. 

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted? Have there been any events or transactions that may cause you 
to change or adopt new accounting policies 

A. Accounting policies have been considered and no amendments were required. There have been no events or transactions which have impacted on 
accounting policies. 

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including derivatives?  

A. No 

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside the normal course of business? 

A. No 

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that would lead to impairment of non-current assets?  

A. No 

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts?  

A. No 

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial statements? 

A. Bad debt provision for one debtor at £7,500. No other provisions for losses or potential claims. 

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details of those solicitors utilised by North York Moors National Park Authority during the year. 
Please indicate where they are working on open litigation or contingencies from prior years? 

A. The NYMNP legal services are provided under a contract with Scarborough Borough Council. There are currently no ongoing litigations of material 
value – or that relate to previous years. 
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9. Have any of North York Moors National Park’s service providers reported any items of fraud, non-compliance with laws and regulations or
uncorrected misstatements which would affect the financial statements? 

A. No 

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted during the year and the issue on which they were consulted?

A. Align Property Partners have consulted on a range of property issues during the year. 
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Appendix 2 - Fraud 

1. Has North York Moors National Park Authority assessed the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud? How has 
the process of identifying and responding to the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the results of this process? How do the Park’s risk 
management processes link to financial reporting? 

A. Limited risk. The governance and processes around reducing fraud risk help to mitigate and reduce the opportunities for fraud. Internal audit 
frequently review our processes to ensure that fraud risk is mitigated. The latest figures are reviewed monthly with the senior management team and 
are taken quarterly to FRASC. Material misstatements would be identified as part of this process. The Authority’s Corporate Risk Register has a 
Financial Strategy risk and associated actions to mitigate risk. This is reviewed at least quarterly and reported to members on the same basis. 

2. What have you determined to be the classes of accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to fraud?  

A. Specific areas of credit cards and cash collection - all have systems in place to mitigate the risk. The risks regarding cash collection have been 
significantly reduced with the introduction of cashless car park ticket machines and the significant increase in card payments at visitor centres. 

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities within North York Moors National Park 
Authority as a management team, how do you communicate risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with governance? 

A. One instance in January 2021 where a credit card was stopped by Barclays due to irregular transactions by a third party not associated with the 
Authority. The card was stopped before any payments were taken and there was therefore no financial loss. Fraud would be reported to Members at 
FRASC via the risk management updates. 

4. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at risk of fraud? Are there particular locations 
within North York Moors National Park Authority where fraud is more likely to occur? 

A. Specific areas of risk, IT systems, credit cards and cash collection - all have systems in place to mitigate the risk. Increased risk around change of bank 
details required additional steps to prevent potential fraud. There are no particular locations at more risk than others. 

5. What processes does the Park have in place to identify and respond to risks of fraud? 

A. Fraud is a key part of the Corporate Risk Management System. Ethical standards, staff conduct and whistleblowing policies. The latter is externally 
provided to add approachability and independence. Fraud policy was updated and signed off in 19/20. Very good controls which have been reviewed by 
internal audit. Strong and tested IT security systems. Close working relationship with the bank. Financial control including reconciliation and controls 
around credit card spend. 

6. How do you assess the overall control environment for North York Moors National Park Authority, including: 
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the existence of internal controls, including segregation of duties; and 

the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of internal control? 

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken? What other controls 
are in place to help prevent, deter or detect fraud? Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of controls or inappropriate 
influence over the financial reporting process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve financial targets)? 

A. Very good. Strong internal controls include:- 

 - reconciliations processes to reduce fraud risk. 

 - strong financial management including budget management, monthly financial reporting and quarterly financial reports to FRASC. 

 - good budget manager training in place. 

 - internal audit who review a number of areas of risk each year. No major risks identified. 

  - financial staff kept abreast of developments in fraud via internal audit as well as good relationship with the bank. 

  - strong IT system security to help prevent fraud. 

  - segregation of duties on raising and approving spend. 

  - good controls around new suppliers and any changes to details. 

  - cash handling risk reduced in April 21 as car park machines are now card only. 

There is no risk of override of controls. Financial regulations are in place to ensure that spend is contained within budgets, and virement limits set so that 
any significant spend requirements are approved at appropriate levels. Monthly reporting at SLT includes discussion of any significant changes to spend 
or income. 

7. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting?

A. No 

8. How does North York Moors National Park Authority communicate and encourage ethical behaviours and business processes of its staff and
contractors? How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about fraud? What concerns are staff expected to report about fraud? Have 
any significant issues been reported?  

A. Staff meetings, intranet, training, policies on ethical practice (including our Values) and staff conduct which are included in induction processes, 
financial regulations including training, all staff meetings, PDRs, 1-2-1s and development plans. 
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Staff should report any suspected instances of fraud to their manager but there is also a whistle blowing policy in place. 

Any suspected instances of fraud or financial anomalies should be raised so that they can be investigated. No significant issues have been reported. 

9. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are considered to be high-risk posts? How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 
assessed and managed? 

A. Finance staff. Bank signatories including all Director posts. Visitor centre staff that are involved in cash handling and taking payments, although this 
has reduced significantly in-year due to car park ticket machines moving to card only. 

Training in place, ethical expectations made clear as part of induction. Reconciliation of cash collection in finance as a separate process to prevent fraud. 
Segregations of duties on spend – raising and approving purchase orders. 

10. Are you aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could give rise to instances of fraud? How do you mitigate the risks 
associated with fraud related to related party relationships and transactions? 

A. No. All related parties are reported as part of the year end process. Controls on spending with segregation of duties on raising and approving spend. 
Procurement processes are dictated by financial regulations, so all procurement must go through open and fair processes. Waivers on procurement 
rules must be approved by the Chief Executive Officer and reported to FRASC. 

11. What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues and risks to the FRAS Committee? How does the FRAS Committee exercise oversight 
over management's processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud and breaches of internal control? What has been the outcome of 
these arrangements so far this year? 

A. Fraud is included in the risk register and it is reported to Members 5 times annually. Any instances of fraud should be reported to FRASC as part of this 
process. FRASC also review the results of internal audits during the year – which highlight if there are any weaknesses and improvements that could be 
put in place to improve controls. No instance of fraud have been identified and Members and Officers are content with the level of internal controls in 
place to assist in combatting fraud. 
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12. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, what has been your response? 

A. No 

13. Have any reports been made under the Bribery Act? 

A. No 
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Appendix 3: Law and Regulations 

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been complied with? What arrangements does North York 
Moors National Park Authority have in place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and regulations? Are you aware of any changes to 
the Park’s regulatory environment that may have a significant impact on the Park’s financial statements? 

A. Financial services are provided by in-house staff, but all budgeting and financial advice is delivered by external staff via a Collaboration Agreement 
with North Yorkshire County Council. The agreement stipulated the qualifications required from staff delivering the service.  This gives an independence 
of judgement to ensure all laws are complied with. The Chief Financial Officer role is also provided by the external agreement. Internal and External 
Audits also provide assurance that all relevant laws and regulations are complied with. Not aware of any significant changes. 

2. How is the FRAS Committee provided with assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been complied with? 

A. As per question 1. 

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 April 2020 with an on-going 
impact on the 2020/21 financial statements?  

A. No 

4. Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial statements? 

A. No 

5. What arrangements does North York Moors National Park Authority have in place to identify, evaluate and account for litigation or claims?  

A. Any potential litigation and claims are managed by the Monitoring Officer in liaison with the Chief Executive Officer and the management team where 
appropriate. Any material claims would also be discussed with Members if there are particular reputational or financial risks to be considered. Any 
ongoing litigation with significant financial risk would be provided for at the year end. This would be assessed considering the potential costs involved 
and an independent assessment of the likely outcome. 

6. Have there been any report from other regulatory bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs which indicate non-compliance?  

A. An HMRC audit was carried out in 2019/20. It found no significant issues 
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Appendix 4: Related parties 

1. Have there been any changes in the related parties including those disclosed in North York Moors National Park Authority 2019/20 financial 
statements?  

A. Related parties remain the same as those reported in 2019/20. 

2. What controls does North York Moors National Park Authority have in place to identify, account for and disclose related party transactions 
and relationships? 

A. Each year as part of the closedown process, Members and Officers in senior positions complete a questionnaire asking for disclosure of any related 
parties. The financial transactions for these are assessed – and a check carried out by finance to ensure that all material transactions have been through 
appropriate contractual and procurement processes in line with financial regulations. 

3. What controls are in place to authorise and approve significant transactions and arrangements with related parties? 

A. Financial regulations apply to all procurement and significant transactions. Financial limits ensure that there is appropriate level of approval, 
segregation of duties and for procurement that the right rules are followed. Any waiver from procurement rules must be approved by the Chief 
Executive Officer and reported to FRASC. 

4. What controls are in place to authorise and approve significant transactions outside of the normal course of business? 

A. Each year budgets are approved through a thorough process including budget managers, finance, Senior Leadership Team and Members. There is 
also a quarterly detailed forecasting process in place as well as monthly financial reviews at SLT. The financial regulations in place ensure that any spend 
which exceeds budget must be approved as laid out in the regulations. There are controls on approval of virements including any over £50k must be 
approved by FRASC. 
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Appendix 5 - Accounting estimates – general enquiries of management 

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and conditions that are significant to the financial statements that give rise to the need for, or 
changes in, accounting estimate and related disclosures? 

A. The financial statements will include accruals and provision for bad debts at the year end. There are no legal liabilities this year. Property and pension 
estimates are provided by external professionals and these are reviewed by the finance team. Accruals are identified through meetings with budget 
holders to identify works delivered in 2020/21 that were not billed by the year end. Bad debts are reviewed on an individual basis and provided for 
depending on the level of non-payment risk. 

2. How does the Authority’s risk management process identify and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates? 

A. There is a financial risk within the risk register although this focusses more on the future financing and fraud risks, as well as operational risks and 
controls. Accounting estimates form part of the financial closedown of accounts, with CFO responsibility for appropriate estimates being included in the 
accounts. 

3. How do management identify the methods, assumptions or source data, and the need for changes in them, in relation to key accounting 
estimates? 

A. Accruals are assessed on the basis of the value of works delivered by the year end but not billed. These can sometimes be estimates, finance review 
these to ensure the approach to valuation is reasonable. Bad debts are assessed individually and based on level of risk of non-payment. Estimates on 
property and pension, external professionals are used to provide estimates which are reviewed and challenged where appropriate by the finance team. 

4. How do management review the outcomes of previous accounting estimates? 

Finance will assess any material differences on accrual estimates v invoices received as part of forecasting and monthly reporting. Reasons for any 
material difference would be sought. Property and pension estimates are reviewed annually and any changes in valuation challenged and reasons 
understood. 

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes in 2020/21 and, if so, what was the reason for these? 

A. No changes except to a couple of assets in property. The professional firm valuing the properties this year changed the basis for the valuations of 
Sutton Bank as they felt that the new property categorisation was more appropriate than that used previously. There were some changes to 
measurements of properties used by the valuer after new measurements were carried out. A property review in 21/22 will provide formal measurements 
for all of our properties. The valuer of assets also reflected the covid-19 valuation uncertainty risk into valuations this year. 
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6. How do management identify the need for and apply specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates? 

A. Specialised valuations are needed for pensions and assets as we do not have employees in-house with that expertise. A technical finance team at 
NYCC assist with closedown of the accounts and can ensure an additional layer of challenge to these estimates. 

7. How does North York Moors National Park Authority determine what control activities are needed for significant accounting estimates, 
including the controls at any service providers or management experts?  

A. For significant estimates, controls are in place so that any significant changes in valuations can be challenged and understood by finance staff and 
communicated to management. Reports are requested for valuers that make it clear the reasons for estimates and any significant changes in them. 

8. What is the nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates, 
including: 

Management’s process for making significant accounting estimates 

The methods and models used 

The resultant accounting estimates included in the financial statements. 
 

A. The CFO assessed the bad debt provision approach each year which is on an individual basis. Finance review accruals at the year end with operational 
teams to ensure the approach and any estimation is reasonable but also within budget limits. Pension and assets valuations are carried out by experts 
but finance ensure there is appropriate challenge to any estimates and changes before the accounts are published. 

9. Are management aware of transactions, events, conditions (or changes in these) that may give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 
accounting estimates that require significant judgement? 
 

A. No 
 

10. Are the management arrangements for the accounting estimates reasonable? 
A. Yes 
 

11. How is the FRAS Committee provided with assurance that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate? 

A. Members have reassurance that finance are involved in accruals and provisions, including any estimates in the accounts. They also have assurance 
throughout the year regarding regular financial reporting and approval of budgets which would pick up any significant differences in accruals. In addition, 
external audit provide thorough checks on assets and pensions which provides the assurance on the estimates in the accounts. In addition, external 
audit attend FRASC throughout the year to provide updates where applicable. 
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Appendix 6 - Valuation of plant, property and equipment 

Were any risks identified relating to the material accuracy of this accounting estimate for the financial year and, if so, how were these risks 
addressed? 

No risks relating to the material accuracy of this accounting estimate specific to 2020/21 were identified.  However the ongoing Covid 19 pandemic and 
its potential impact on PPE valuations had been identified as a risk which was addressed in the valuation report. 

How do management select, or design, the methods, used in respect of this accounting estimate, including the models used? Were any changes 
made to these methods or models in 2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

Property, Plant and Equipment is valued on the basis required by the CIPFA Code of Practice which is based on International Financial Reporting 
Standards, and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Global Standards.  Asset Valuations are carried out by external valuers who are 
appropriately qualified and who adhere to the CIPFA and RICS regulations.  The current external valuers are Align Property Partners. Methods and 
models used are agreed between management, external valuers and external auditors to ensure they are appropriate and meet the requirements of 
these stakeholders. In 2020/21 the approach to valuing one asset, Sutton Bank Visitors Centre, changed from a market value to Depreciated 
Replacement Cost on advice and agreement with Align Property Partners.  Align Property Partners advised that as the Visitors Centre was a specialised 
operational asset then DRC would be the most appropriate and accurate valuation method to adopt. 

How do management select the assumptions used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to these assumptions in 
2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

A.  Align Property Partners reference a number of assumptions they make in their report. NYMNPA management do not select any assumptions used in 
this accounting estimate as all the data passed to Align Property Partners from NYMNPA is factual. No changes were made to assumptions in 20/21. 

How do management select the source data used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to this source data in 
2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

Source data is selected as that which will help best inform the external valuers to produce materially accurate valuations each year.  Source data 
includes: 

a. The addresses and locations of Land and Buildings
b. Measurements of Land and Buildings
c. Any expenditure incurred on each asset
d. Details of any reasons an asset may be impaired e.g. material damage
e. Tenancy and lease information
f. Income generated by an asset which may impact its valuation e.g. car park
g. All data is selected with the agreement of the external valuer and, where possible, the external auditor, to ensure its appropriateness.
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No changes were made in 20/21. 

Were any specialised skills or knowledge used in respect of this accounting estimates, and if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

The authority engages specialist external valuers who are appropriately qualified with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.  The current external 
valuers are Align Property Partners Limited.   

How do management monitor the operation of control activities in relation to this accounting estimates, including the control activities at any 
service providers or management experts? 

Management undertake a review of the valuation report provided by Align Property Partners and challenge any area where control activities appear not 
to be sufficient or have changed since the prior year’s report, with the external valuations.  These challenges and the valuer’s responses are documented 
and shared with external auditors to demonstrate this monitoring process. 

In management’s opinion, are their adequate controls in place over the calculation of this accounting estimate, including those at any service 
provider or management expert used, and if so how is the robustness of the key controls assessed? 

Yes – adequate controls are in place. Management undertake a review of the valuation report provided by Align Property Partners and challenge any 
area adequate controls over the calculation of this accounting estimate appear not to be sufficient or have changed since the prior year’s report, with the 
external valuations. These challenges and the valuer’s responses are documented and shared with external auditors to demonstrate this monitoring 
process. 

Were any changes made to the key control activities this year? If so please provide details. 

No changes were made to the key control activities. 

How do management consider the estimation uncertainty related to this accounting estimate and address this uncertainty when selecting the 
point estimate to use? 

Management undertake a review of the valuation report provided by Align Property Partners to ensure risks relating to estimation uncertainty have 
been addressed and recorded appropriately and the report states that the approach taken complies with CIPFA and RICS guidance.  If management 
have any queries as to whether the estimation uncertainty may result in materially inaccurate valuations then the valuers are challenged and this is 
documented and responses shared with external auditors.  The 202021 valuation report specifically includes reference to the Covid 19 pandemic and 
states that ‘the valuation is therefore reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global. 
Consequently, less certainty – and a higher degree of caution – should be attached to the valuation than would normally be the case’.   

How do management consider the sensitivity of the estimate to the methods and assumptions used and identify the range of reasonably 
possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial statements? 
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Due to the relatively small number of assets that are revalued each year, management are able to challenge any change in valuation for each asset with 
the external valuer to ensure the estimate is reasonable. Management consider the sensitivity of the estimate to the methods and assumptions used by 
also comparing any changes in valuations to the materiality thresholds for the statement of accounts, as agreed with the external auditors each year, as 
a guide 
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Appendix 7: Valuation of the pensions liability 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the material accuracy of this accounting estimate for the financial year and, if so, how were these 
risks addressed? 
 

A. No risks relating to the material accuracy of this accounting estimate specific to 2020/21 were identified. 
 

2. How do management select, or design, the methods, used in respect of this accounting estimate, including the models used? Were any 
changes made to these methods or models in 2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 
 

A. Estimation of the net liability to pay future pensions depends upon a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at 
which salaries are projected to increase, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets, amongst others. Management place a 
great reliance on the expertise of the actuaries of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF) in creating an accurate estimate for the element of 
the NYPF liability that relates to NYMNPA, however, management also receive a ‘letter of assurance’ from the external auditor of NYPF (currently 
Deloitte) each year which includes their audit opinion on the NYPF accounts (including this and all estimates produced by AON). No changes were 
made in 20/21. 
 

3. How do management select the assumptions used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to these assumptions 
in 2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 
 

A. The current actuary of NYPF is AON and they reference a number of assumptions they make in their report. NYMNPA management do not select 
any assumptions used in this accounting estimate as all the data passed to AON from NYMNPA is factual. Management also receive a ‘letter of 
assurance’ from the external auditor of NYPF (currently Deloitte) each year which includes their audit opinion on the NYPF accounts (including 
this and all estimates produced by AON). No changes in assumptions in 20/21. 

 

4. How do management select the source data used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to this source data in 
2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

 

A. The most appropriate source data to help inform this accounting estimate is selected by AON and then requested from NYMNPA. No changes 
were made in 2020/21. 

 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge used in respect of this accounting estimates, and if so how were these specialist skills 
procured? 

 

A. Specialised skills and knowledge of AON were utilised.  NYMNPA does not directly procure these services.  AON has been procured by NYPF as 
their actuary following the appropriate procurement legislation and guidelines. Management also consult external auditors (and, in turn, their 
specialist valuation departments) if they have any concerns over the robustness of key controls. Management also receive a ‘letter of assurance’ 
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from the external auditor of NYPF (currently Deloitte) each year which includes their audit opinion on the NYPF accounts (including this and all 
estimates produced by AON). 

 

6. How do management monitor the operation of control activities in relation to this accounting estimates, including the control activities at 
any service providers or management experts? 

 

A. Management review AON’s valuation report and are able to challenge any estimates which it feels may not be materially accurate.  However, due 
to the complexity of the actuary’s work, and that it covers all 100+ member bodies of the NYPF, management place a great reliance on AON’s 
report and estimates.  Management also receive a ‘letter of assurance’ from the external auditor of NYPF (currently Deloitte) each year which 
includes their audit opinion on the NYPF accounts (including this and all estimates produced by AON). 

 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate controls in place over the calculation of this accounting estimate, including those at any 
service provider or management expert used, and if so how is the robustness of the key controls assessed? 

 
A. Yes there are sufficient controls in place. Management review AON’s valuation report and are able to challenge any estimates which it feels may 

not be materially accurate.  However, due to the complexity of the actuary’s work, and that it covers all 100+ member bodies of the NYPF, 
management place a great reliance on AON’s report and estimates, however management also receive a ‘letter of assurance’ from the external 
auditor of NYPF (currently Deloitte) each year which includes their audit opinion on the NYPF accounts (including this and all estimates produced 
by AON). Management also consult external auditors if they have any concerns over the robustness of key controls. 

 

8. Were any changes made to the key control activities this year? If so please provide details. 
 

A. No 
 

9. How do management consider the estimation uncertainty related to this accounting estimate and address this uncertainty when selecting 
the point estimate to use? 

 

A. Management undertake a review of the IAS19 report provided by AON to ensure risks relating to estimation uncertainty have been addressed 
and recorded appropriately and the report states that the approach taken complies with the appropriate CIPFA and other appropriate 
regulations. Management also receive a ‘letter of assurance’ from the external auditor of NYPF (currently Deloitte) each year which includes their 
audit opinion on the NYPF accounts (including this and all estimates produced by AON). These estimates are also discussed with external auditors 
each year and agreed before final audit opinions are issued. 
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10. How do management consider the sensitivity of the estimate to the methods and assumptions used and identify the range of reasonably 
possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial statements? 

 

A. Sensitivity analysis around certain assumptions has identified that the following changes to the current estimated pension deficit of £7.514m 
would occur if alternative assumptions were to be applied: 
• A +0.1% p.a. change in the discount rate to be applied would reduce the pension deficit by £849k 
• A +0.1% p.a. change in pay growth would increase the deficit by £77k 
• A +0.1% p.a. change in inflation would increase the deficit by £772k 
• An additional 1 year increase in life expectancy would increase the deficit by £1,429k 
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Appendix 8 - Depreciation charge 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the material accuracy of this accounting estimate for the financial year and, if so, how were these 
risks addressed? 

 

A. No specific risks were identified for 2020/21 
 

2. How do management select, or design, the methods, used in respect of this accounting estimate, including the models used? Were any 
changes made to these methods or models in 2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

 

A. The CIPFA Code of Practice is based on IFRS and this has been consulted and adhered to in management selecting the methods and models used 
in this accounting estimate.  The Depreciation policy is explained in the annual accounts of NYMNPA under the ‘Accounting Policies’ section, as 
follows: 

Depreciation is provided for on all assets with a finite useful life (which can be determined at the time of acquisition or revaluation) according to 
the following policy: 

• Buildings (but not the land on which they stand) are depreciated over their remaining useful lives. Estimates of useful life are determined for 
each property and where material, for components of those properties as part of the valuation process. 13 Bondgate (Helmsley), Old Vicarage 
(Helmsley), Sutton Bank Visitor Centre, Moors Centre (Danby) and Spout House (Chopgate) buildings are depreciated over 40 years, as 
advised by Align Property Partners.  All other buildings are depreciated over 30 years with the exception of the buildings at Sawmill Lane 
Depot (Helmsley) which are depreciated over 20 years; and 

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are depreciated over a number of years depending on the nature of the asset (e.g. vehicles 5 years, 
equipment 3 to 5 years).  

 

Remaining useful lives are periodically reviewed and the charge to revenue adjusted if appropriate. Depreciation is calculated using the straight 
line method with no residual value at disposal. Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each 
year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

3. How do management select the assumptions used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to these assumptions 
in 2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

 

A. Assumptions used in this accounting estimate are selected after consulting the CIPFA Code of Practice and also comparing to the accounting 
policies / assumptions of other local authorities.  External auditors are also consulted to ensure that they agree with the depreciation estimates 
and policy utilised. No changes were made to the assumptions in 20/21. 
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4. How do management select the source data used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to this source data in 
2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

 

A. The source data used in respect of calculating this estimate is as per the CIPFA Code of Practice and accounting convention e.g. useful economic 
life, current carrying value, additions in year.  Selecting the source data is not subjective however selecting the depreciation methodology and 
accounting policy is where the issue of ‘estimation’ needs management consideration and an element of judgement. No changes in 20/21 
 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge used in respect of this accounting estimates, and if so how were these specialist skills 
procured? 

 

A. The external valuer includes useful economic lives of the assets they have revalued in year in their report.  Specialised skills of the accountants 
who prepare the annual statutory accounts from North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) were also utilised.  NYMNPA procured the support of 
NYCC Financial Services team under the appropriate local government procurement regulations. 
 

6. How do management monitor the operation of control activities in relation to this accounting estimates, including the control activities at 
any service providers or management experts? 

 

A. The Depreciation policy is reviewed by management each year to ensure it complies with the CIPFA accounting regulations and is appropriate to 
the assets it is applied to – especially any new assets or where major changes have occurred to existing assets. 
 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate controls in place over the calculation of this accounting estimate, including those at any 
service provider or management expert used, and if so how is the robustness of the key controls assessed? 

 

A. Yes 
 

8. Were any changes made to the key control activities this year? If so please provide details. 
 

A. No 
 

9. How do management consider the estimation uncertainty related to this accounting estimate and address this uncertainty when selecting 
the point estimate to use? 

 

A. There is a lower level of uncertainty over this estimate as management have greater control over the accounting policy and its application.  
However the depreciation charge is compared to previous years and the depreciation policy is checked to ensure it is in line with that of other 
local authorities. 
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10. How do management consider the sensitivity of the estimate to the methods and assumptions used and identify the range of reasonably
possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial statements?

A. A 1% change in the depreciation charge of £265k in the 20/21 accounts would result in a £2.65k change in the CIES which would be below the 
materiality threshold of NYMNPA. 
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Appendix 9 - S106 Accruals 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the material accuracy of this accounting estimate for the financial year and, if so, how were these 
risks addressed? 
 

A. Income is received in advance and moved out to the balance sheet where there is more income than expenditure. Any accruals on areas 
funded by S106 spend are on the same basis as all other areas of spend, work has to have been delivered prior to 31 March but not yet paid. 
The same checks are in place for this as any other area of spend. 

 

The S106 funding is subject to pay back if not spent within a specified time period. There has only been a small amount paid back to date. It is 
deemed that at present there is no risk of pay back, but core policy D underspends are closely monitored. 

 

2. How do management select, or design, the methods, used in respect of this accounting estimate, including the models used? Were any 
changes made to these methods or models in 2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

 

A. See questions 1 for approach to standard accruals. There is a full forecasting process for core policy D which enables understanding of risk of pay 
back of funding. There has been no change in approach year on year. 
 

3. How do management select the assumptions used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to these assumptions 
in 2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

 

A. Standard management approach to accruals. 
 

4. How do management select the source data used in respect of this accounting estimate? Were any changes made to this source data in 
2020/21, and if so what was the reason for the change? 

 

A. Standard management approach to accruals. 
 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge used in respect of this accounting estimates, and if so how were these specialist skills 
procured? 

 

A. N/A 
 
6. How do management monitor the operation of control activities in relation to this accounting estimates, including the control activities at 

any service providers or management experts? 
 

A. N/A 
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North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

Tuesday 31 August 2021 

Item 11, Q1 Financial Update 2021/22 

1. Purpose of the report 

1.1 To provide Members with an update on the financial position at the end of the 
first quarter of 2021/22 and the latest forecast for the full financial year. 

2. Background 

2.1 This report details the position of income and expenditure to 30 June 2021 
compared with the budget, highlighting any key issues to bring to members’ 
attention.  

2.2 The original budget was set at full Authority in March 2021.  

2.3 Last year the coronavirus pandemic resulted in the exceptional step of producing 
a revised budget in year. This will not be required this year as financial impacts 
from the pandemic are expected to be limited. 

3. Budget changes 

3.1 The budget has been updated since the approval in March to accommodate new 
externally-funded projects and changes in profile. This impacts both income and 
expenditure with a net nil impact on the bottom line. 

3.2 2021/22 Budget summary as at 30 June 2021 

 - 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 

- Original budget  Latest budget Change in budget 

 - £k £k £k 

Gross Income 9,183 9,706 523 

Gross Expenditure -9,206 -9,729 -523 

Net Movement from Reserves -23 -23 0 

 

4. Financial performance overview 

4.1 The table below summarises the current position as at 30 June 2021. 



 

-  Profile 
budget 

Year to date 
actual 

Year to 
date 
variance 

Full year 
current 
budget 

Full year 
forecast 
outturn 

Full year 
variance 

 - Jun-21 Jun-21 Jun-21 Mar-22 Mar-22 Mar-22 

Income £k £k £k £k £k £k 

Earned & External 
Income 

655 566 -89 3,012 3,046 34 

NPG Grant Income 1,201 1,201 0 4,382 4,382 0 

S106 Compensation & 
Mitigation 

876 912 36 2,312 2,312 0 

Total income 2,732 2,679 -53 9,706 9,740 34 

Expenditure - - - - - - 

Core Expenditure -1,875 -1,582 293 -7,417 -7,444 -27 

S106 Compensation & 
Mitigation 

-404 -424 -20 -2,312 -2,312 0 

Total expenditure -2,279 -2,006 273 -9,729 -9,756 -27 

Total surplus/deficit 453 673 220 -23 -16 7 

 

4.2 At the end of June, there is a surplus of £673k which is £220k higher than the 
budgeted surplus of £453k. Key points relating to the movements against 
budget can be found in sections 5 and 6 below with additional detail of all 
variances in appendices 1 and 2.  

4.3 The full year forecast at this early stage of the year indicates a marginally lower 
contribution from reserves. 

5. Income 

5.1 The key earned income streams are detailed below. 

  



 

Earned income Profile 
budget 

Year to 
Date 
actual 

Year to 
date 
variance 

Full year 
current 
budget 

Full year 
forecast 
outturn 

Full year 
variance 

- Jun-21 Jun-21 Jun-21 Mar-22 Mar-22 Mar-22 

- £k £k £k £k £k £k 

Car parking 206 196 -10 651 651 0 

Visitor centres 46 51 5 229 229 0 

Planning fees 64 86 22 260 275 15 

Other 95 80 -15 481 481 0 

Total 411 413 2 1,621 1,636 15 

 

5.2 Car park income budget is set at a challenging level of £651k. At the end of 
quarter 1, income was £10k short of target, but this was primarily driven by lower 
visitor numbers in May when the weather was particularly poor and the 
continuing effects of lockdown which depressed income at some sites. Strong 
performance in April and June gives confidence that the budget will be met for 
the year, with June in particular seeing strong visitor numbers. Forecast remains 
at budget at this stage, but will be reviewed at Q2 when there is a clearer view of 
visitor numbers through the summer months. 

5.3 Visitor Centre retail facilities performed above expectations, with higher visitor 
numbers, and a slightly different approach to retail, converting into income being 
£5k higher than budget at the end of quarter 1. 

5.4 In 2020/21, one of the unexpected impacts of the pandemic was a 20%+ 
increase in planning applications. This has shown no sign of slowing down in 
quarter 1, with consistently high volumes resulting in increased pressure on the 
planning team. Income as a result is £22k higher than budget at the end of 
quarter 1. Some caution is taken in the forecast, quarter 2 will provide indication 
on whether the trend is set to continue. However, £15k of additional income is 
forecast which will cover additional expenditure which is required in the team to 
help alleviate the additional pressure of the increase in application volumes and 
ensure that planning performance levels are maintained. 

5.5 Timing in other income received has resulted in a shortfall at the start of the year 
but this is expected to come back to budget by the year end. 

5.6 Income which helps to fund the apprentice scheme is expected to be higher than 
budget this year by £24k. This is driven by the increase in 2021/22 contribution 
from the North Yorkshire Moors Railway as a result of them rephasing their 



 

budgets, partly offset by a reduction in income as a result of the Land of Iron 
project coming to an end. 

6. Expenditure 

6.1 There is a shortfall on expenditure at the end of quarter 1, which is primarily 
driven by timing on externally funded projects and connectivity spend.  

6.2 The forecast indicates an additional £27k of expenditure compared to budget. 
The majority of this is in planning where £15k of additional costs are required to 
support the increase in applications (this is offset by additional forecasted 
income) and additional costs to deal with a large application. A reduction for 
2021/22 on visitor centre business rates has been applied, leading to a saving of 
£26.4k for the year. Some additional spend has been required on toilet 
maintenance. 

6.3 Savings on legal and procurement contracts have been forecast due to lower 
requirements for services. The Kickstart scheme is also expected to cost slightly 
less than expected when estimated before the scheme commenced. This is 
offset by extension to the climate officer post plus additional costs for the 
property review which is being undertaken this year. 

6.4 Currently there has been no decision on the pay award. The budget and forecast 
continue to assume a 2% increase in pay. A revised pay offer of 1.75% has been 
made by employers nationally and a response from Trades Unions is expected 
shortly.  

7. S106 – Polyhalite update  

7.1 Good progress has been made on delivering underspent Landscape & Ecology 
projects from 2021 with all work reprofiled for this financial year and around 30% 
of the underspend already delivered. New projects for 2022 are underway and 
are largely delivering to profile. These include continuation work on the feasibility 
of the Staithes – Whitby cycle link, work with the YHA on rectifying a landslip at 
Boggle Hole, traditional boundary work at Farndale and work on the Cleveland 
Way at Robin Hoods Bay. 

7.2 A replacement Woodland Creation officer has been appointed. A number of 
contractors have been recruited to work up woodland creation agreements over 
the summer to ensure that woodland creation schemes are ready to be delivered 
in the autumn and winter. A target of 111ha is expected to be delivered before 
April 2022. 

7.3 All 3rd party contributions have been paid over for this financial year. 

7.4 Discussion continues with Welcome to Yorkshire to agree a Service Level 
Agreement to deliver a programme of work against the Tourism Contribution. If 
this cannot be reached by the end of August, the Authority proposes deliver the 
work itself as has happened in the last 2 years in line with the s106 agreement. 



 

8. Reserves  
 
8.1 The opening reserves balance for 2021/22 is £3.762m. Closing balance has 

decreased to £3.667m as a result of some of the carry forward elements being 
paid and delivered in quarter 1. It is expected that reserves will reduce 
substantially in year with delivery of a number of key projects and allocation of 
income held in advance. Detail of the reserves position can be found in appendix 
3. 

8.2 The reserve allocation approved in the 2020/21 outturn report are included in the 
table at 9.4, as are the carry forward budgets. 

8.3 An update will be provided at Q2, where more reserves funding is expected to be 
spent and the external projects reserve releases will be completed for the half 
year. 

9. Major project financial updates 
 
9.1 Land of Iron 
 
9.1.1 The project has been successfully closed down and is now in its legacy phase 

delivering some minor outstanding capital works, ongoing maintenance and 
archiving work. Work continues with the Rosedale Estate and Natural England to 
try and find additional resources to match the figure held in reserves for the 
Stone Kilns restoration work. 

9.1.2 Some retention payments for previous capital works are due to be paid out in 
October. 

9.2 Ryevitalise 
 
9.2.1 Spend for Q1 = £88,380 

9.2.2 A very positive on site Progress Review meeting with NLHF was held in July. 
Timescales and budget were reviewed and NLHF are pleased with progress; 
spend to-date is quite low however substantial budget commitments are being 
made now several long-term Conservation Agreements are signed and large 
projects, such as the new exhibition space at Sutton Bank National Park Centre, 
are underway. The Ryevitalise team are constantly reviewing the budget as 
NLHF and Partnership have agreed Ryevitalise should be extended by at least 12 
months as a result of Covid. Formal submission for our project extension will be 
submitted in 2022 as advised by NLHF. 

9.2.3 Increase in staff costs will need to be absorbed by the Ryevitalise budget, 
requiring a careful balance to still achieve agreed project outputs. NLHF have 
agreed that contingency and inflation budgets can be put towards staff costs 
(these elements are already accounted for in individual project budgets). Other 
areas will also be diverted to staff costs, such as excess mileage allocation and 
budget against a second vehicle which is not needed. 



 

9.2.4 Key deliverables in quarter 1:- 

- Over 600 hours of volunteering has been recorded for Q1 on activities 
including LiDAR Landscapes, Riverfly Monitoring, practical conservation 
tasks and oral history collection. 

- 16 conservation agreements are in place as a further three have been 
signed up in Q1; Two species specific (butterfly) conservation agreements 
are drafted; 

- Hydrological modelling has been delivered for the entire Ryevitalise 
area; 

- River Rangers and afterschool activities have been delivered this 
quarter, as well as several events including guided walks. 

9.3 Farming in Protected Landscapes (FiPL) 
 
9.3.1 In May, the Authority was awarded £774,615.00 by DEFRA under the Farming in 

Protected Landscapes Programme. The programme offers funding to farmers 
and land managers to support nature recovery, mitigate the impacts of climate 
change, provide opportunities for people to discover, enjoy and understand the 
landscape and its cultural heritage and support nature-friendly, sustainable farm 
businesses in the National Park. A project officer and admin support has been 
recruited and are already in discussions with many potential applicants assisting 
in developing projects that can be supported through this funding. The first 
Assessment Panel (which is operated jointly with the Howardian Hills AONB) was 
held on 10th August and the panel will meet regularly over the next 6 months to 
ensure projects are assessed quickly so that projects can be delivered on the 
ground. FiPL is a 3 year programme and the funding allocation must be spent at 
the end of each financial year. Contributions for years 2 and 3 are expected to be 
less than that for this year. 

9.4 Esk projects 

9.4.1 The Authority has secured over £900k for work on the River Esk catchment over 
the next 2 years. Income is from a range of sources including the Water 
Environment Grant (WEG),  ERDF (Blue Corridors), Environment Agency (EA) for 
Coastal streams, Catchment Based approach (CaBA), the Environment 
Investment Readiness Fund (EIRF) and from s106. The work involves working 
with riparian landowners to reduce pollution in the river to help it attain the status 
necessary to reintroduce breeding freshwater pearl mussel, removing significant 
man made features from the watercourse to allow the river to flow in a more 
naturalistic way and work with riparian land managers to understand how they 
can work collaboratively to deliver environmental benefits as well as financial 
benefits. 

  



 

9.4.2 The work is progressing well and there are currently 2 full time members of staff 
working on delivering these activities with support from the Head of Natural 
Environment. We are recruiting an additional 3 year post to help with capacity in 
this area. 

10. Waivers and virements 
 
10.1 There were no waivers in quarter 1. 

10.2 There have been no virements over £50k to report to FRASC. 
 
11. Conclusion 
 
11.1 There is a £220k surplus at the end of quarter 1 driven primarily by external 

funding projects and lower connectivity spend. As it is early in the year, a 
cautious forecast indicates a contribution from reserves of £16k which is £7k 
better than budget. 

11.2 Indications at the end of quarter 1 are that income is performing well, particularly 
in planning. June was an exceptional month for car parking income and may be 
indicative of performance in the summer months with more people holidaying in 
the UK. 

11.3 The covid-19 pandemic is having a limited impact on the financial position of the 
Authority in 2021/22. 

11.4 The Authority has now received £774k to deliver the Farming in Protected 
Landscapes project. 

12. Financial and staffing implications 

12.1 As detailed in the report. 

13. Contribution to National Park Management Plan 

13.1 It is a requirement for the Authority to produce quarterly updates on the financial 
position and an outturn report at the end of the year. The financial position 
underpins the delivery of the Management Plan. 

14. Legal and sustainability implications 

14.1 There are no legal issues as a result of this report. 

15. Recommendations 

15.1 That Members note the content of the report. 

Contact Officer:  
Pete Williams 
Chief Finance Officer to the North York Moors National Park Authority 
01439 772700



Appendix 1, 2021/22 Income and Expenditure Summary as at 30 June 2021 

- 
 

Budget 
Q1 

Actual Q1  Variance 
Q1 

Annual 
budget 

Forecast 
outturn 

Full year 
variance 

Commentary 

Income £k £k £k £k £k £k - 
Natural Environment 243 374 131 1,159 1,157 

 
2.5 
 

Timing on connectivity work and 
external funded projects. Reduction in 
Levisham rents forecast 

Cultural Heritage 2 2 0 94 94 0 - 
Recreation Management 249 132 -117 899 923 24 National trails income received late and 

car park income slightly lower at Q1. 
Higher apprentice income forecast. 

Promoting Understanding 70 -57 -127 426 426 0 Final Sutton Bank settlement budgeted 
in Q1 but settled in Q2. 

Rangers and Volunteers 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 
Development Management 65 87 22 270 285 15 Planning applications increase. 
Forward Planning 0 0 0 16 16 0 - 
Corporate and Democratic Core 26 28 2 148 145 -3 Investment interest slightly lower than 

expected due to reduced rates. 
DEFRA Grant 1,201 1,201 0 4,382 4,382 0 - 
Total function income 1,856 1,767 -89 7,394 7,428 34 - 
S106 Compensation & 
mitigation 

876 912 36 2312 2312 0 - 

Total income 2,732 2,679 -53 9,706 9,740 34 - 
Expenditure £k £k £k £k £k £k - 
Natural Environment -424 -245 179 -1941 -1941 0 Timing of spend on external projects and 

connectivity work. 
Cultural Heritage -110 -110 0 -390 -390 0 - 
Recreation Management -266 -210 56 -1,295 -1,303.5 -8.5 A number of budgets slightly 

underspend at Q1. Some additional 
spend on toilets forecast. 

Promoting Understanding -321 -296 25 -1,624 -1,612 12 Savings on business rates offset by 
some additional maintenance works and 
staff costs. 

Rangers and Volunteers -166 -147 19 -869 -869 0 Lower vehicle and travel costs. 
Development Management -144 -145 -1 -787 -815.4 -28.4 Additional staffing costs and costs to 

deal with a large application forecast. 
Forward Planning  -33 -29 4 -221 -221 0  - 



 

- 
 

Budget 
Q1 

Actual Q1  Variance 
Q1 

Annual 
budget 

Forecast 
outturn 

Full year 
variance 

Commentary 

Corporate and Democratic Core -411 -400 11 -290 -292 -2 Higher staff costs in quarter 1 and timing 
in IT spend. Saving on purchasing and 
legal contracts and the Kickstart 
scheme offset by increase in costs on 
the property review and extension to the 
climate officer post. 

Total function expenditure -1,875 -1,582 293 -7,417 -7,444 -27 - 
S106 Compensation & 
Mitigation 

-404 -424 -20 -2,312 -2,312 0 - 

Total expenditure -2,279 -2,006 273 -9,729 -9,756 -27 - 
NET surplus/deficit 453 673 220 -23 -16 7 - 

 



Appendix 2  Subjective detail Profiled 
budget 
Q1 

Actual Q1 Variance 
Q1 

Annual 
budget 

Forecast 
outturn  

Full year 
variance 

Income type £k £k £k £k £k £k 

Other External Grants (Excluding DEFRA) 236 -27 -263 1,283 1,307 24 

Retail Sales 46 51 5 229 229 0 

Planning Fee  Income (including planning S106) 65 87 22 270 285 15 

Car Park Income 206 196 -10 651 651 0 

Donations 10 4 -6 50 50 0 

Other Income  50 94 44 278 276 -3 

Match Funding 42 161 119 224 224 0 

Capital Receipts 0 0 0 17 14 -3 

Investment Income 0 0 0 10 10 0 

Section 106 Income 876 912 36 2,312 2,312 0 

DEFRA GRANT 1,201 1,201 0 4,382 4,382 0 

Total Income 2,732 2,679 -53 9,706 9,740 34 

Expenditure Type £k £k £k £k £k £k 

Employees (excluding S106 employees) -953 -1,015 -62 -3,814 -3,839 -25 

Premises -81 -74 7 -390 -379 11 

Transport -36 -24 12 -178 -178 0 

Supplies and Services -718 -403 315 -2,707 -2,720 -13 



 

Appendix 2  Subjective detail Profiled 
budget 
Q1 

Actual Q1 Variance 
Q1 

Annual 
budget 

Forecast 
outturn  

Full year 
variance 

Third Party Payments -87 -66 21 -328 -328 0 

Section 106 Expenditure -404 -424 -20 -2,312 -2,312 0 

Total Expenditure -2,279 -2,006 273 -9,729 -9,756 -27 



Appendix 3 – Reserves 

Reserve Summary  (£k) 2021/22 Opening 
position 

Movement in 
reserves at Q1  

2021/22 Q1 
position 

Emergency Reserve 385 0 385 

TELI  Match Funding 190 0 190 

Section 106 Reserve 1550 0 1550 

Ryevitalise Income 19 0 19 

Restricted and Committed Reserves 2,144 0 2,144 

Capital : Sutton Bank Visitor Centre 37 0 37 

Capital : Vehicle Replacements 130 0 130 

Capital : IT Replacements 87 0 87 

Capital : Office Building Works 280 0 280 

Projects : Ryevitalise Match Funding 153 0 153 

Projects : Asset Income Generation 58 0 58 

Projects : Climate change post 14 0 14 

Projects : Car park machines 60 0 60 

Pension Smoothing Reserve 10 0 10 

2020/21 carry forwards 311.5 -94 217 

Future match funding – major projects 200 0 200 

Property reserves 214.5 0 215 

Park services project support 10 0 10 

Analysis of carbon emissions in the National Park 10 0 10 

Community grant contribution 7.5 0 8 

Blue Corridors project support 3 0 3 

Lone working devices 3 0 3 

Landscape character assessment 14 0 14 

Graduate planning post in 20/21 15 0 15 

Committee Approved Reserves 1617.5 -94 1523 

Total Reserve Balance 3,762 -94 3,667 

 



North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

31 August 2021 

Item 12, Corporate risk register  

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 For Members to note the actions undertaken since the Authority’s Corporate
Risk Register (CRR) for 2021/22 was approved by NPA in March.

2. Background

2.1 As Members are aware the Authority maintains a CRR which is updated annually
and then considered by FRASC quarterly after approval at the March Authority
meeting.

2.2 The CRR was updated by the Chief Executive and Directors, in a process
facilitated by NYCC’s Insurance and Risk Management Team on 8 January. The
version approved by NPA is attached as appendix 1, with the recent officer
addition detailing the risks and mitigation involved with the Farming in Protected
Landscapes (FiPL) funding.

3. Corporate risk register 2021/2022

3.1 Detailed below is a brief summary of actions progressed since approval by the
NPA in March, updated by FRASC in May. No changes to the risk categories are
proposed.

• Financial strategy – category 2. The significant changes to several financial
processes implemented quickly in 2020 to ensure that business as usual was
maintained during the pandemic have been the subject of Internal Audit
scrutiny. These processes have been audited and deemed appropriate.
External Audit work has commenced and details are dealt with elsewhere on
the agenda. Strong progress is being made on the property review with a
formal report due at September NPA.

• Capacity and resilience – category 2. Work has been undertaken to
organise how office based working will be delivered as covid related
restrictions are lifted. While officers are mindful of not unduly pressurising
staff to return to the office environment, there are also a significant number
of new starters who would benefit from this. Planning for the National Park
Management Plan and Business Plan is realistic with regard to our resources.

• Farming in Protected Landscapes (FiPL) – category 2. A new risk has been
added to assess risks related to undertaking Farming in Protected
Landscapes work. This Defra funded work is a 3 year programme with an
intensive delivery phase in the first year, due to late notification of funding
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from DEFRA. In house expertise and quick recruitment of the FiPL officer 
has meant that we have got off to a good start and have been able to 
promote the scheme with high levels of early interest from applicants. An 
administrator has also been recruited and additional consultant support has 
been secured. An assessment panel for applications has been set up and will 
meet regularly to assess applications and progress projects quickly. 

• Health and safety – category 2. A good programme of actions has been
established to help support mental health. The continuing difficulties in
meeting face to face has resulted in postponing Member training on this
subject to later in the year. Resources have been found to employ a Ranger 1
day/week to fully organise and catalogue equipment maintenance.

• Minerals development pressure on the park – category 2. We are
currently progressing well with the determination of the Boulby Potash Mine
application and are able to cover costs through the Planning Performance
Agreement and application fee. Arrangements are being made for a bespoke
planning committee to consider the application in the early autumn subject
to final public consultation currently taking place. Progress with adoption of
the Joint Minerals and Waste Local Plan is still frustratingly slow but has now
progressed to its final consultation on the proposed Modifications with an
adoption date expected in early 2022. No contact or proposals from any
other form of minerals development has been received.

• Woodsmith mine implementation – category 3. Work continues and is on
track to deliver most of the s106 compensation and mitigation activities. A
new Woodland Creation officer has been recruited to replace the previous
officer and consultancy support has been secured to facilitate and expedite
Core Policy D projects for the coming winter. Tourism work has been delayed
due to the Covid pandemic although campaigns have been devised and are
ready to launch at the appropriate time. Monitoring has continued despite
the pandemic and the developer continues to work cooperatively with us. We
continue to retain professional legal, technical and ecological advisers to
support us.

• Devolution implications – category 3. Our concerns over a potential
conflict with our spatial planning role if a future mayoral combined authority
were to develop a statutory spatial framework were made clear in meetings
last year with Defra and MHCLG officials. An expected, a White Paper on
Devolution has been delayed due to other government priorities; however, a
decision has now been made on local government reorganisation which is a
required precursor to a devolution deal. The transition to a single unitary
authority covering the existing County area will now commence to ensure
the new Authority is in place by April 2023, and this will have some
implications for the NPA, particularly its Membership. Officers are now part
of a new protected landscapes working group which will advise on changes
to be put forward in the Planning Bill and an imminent Landscapes Bill which
will take forward the Landscapes Review proposals. This issue can be dealt
with in that context.
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• Wildlife and biodiversity – category 4. Good progress continues to be 
made with statutory agency and other partners in developing and delivering 
programmes of work to enhance biodiversity in the park. Work continues on 
prioritising our future wildlife work through the new National Park 
Management Plan. Programmes such as the FiPL work, Ryevitalise, River 
Esk projects and the progression of work on the Yorkshire Marine Nature 
Partnership, peat restoration and the Birds on the Edge programme will 
continue in the meantime, along with a wide range of projects delivered 
under s106 including water vole habitat restoration, wildflower meadow 
creation and native woodland management.  

• Climate change arrangements for the NPA – category 5. Strong progress 
has been made in this area in recent months and the details were presented 
to the last FRASC. Further progress has been made in obtaining quotations 
for heating and other works to reduce carbon emissions from our buildings, 
while consideration is being given to how the carbon emissions created as a 
result of buying goods or services might be reduced. 

• Landscapes review – category 5. We are keeping in close contact with 
Defra officials via a contact group that includes National Park Officers and 
representatives of AONBs. 

• Management Plan – category 5. This is continuing to progress well 
following good feedback from initial public engagement and the three 
thematic working groups set up with our partners which have met twice to 
discuss emerging issues and objectives. Draft outcomes and objectives have 
been prepared for further discussion with partners over the summer and 
progress has also been made to amend/review the Special Qualities of the 
National Park. The plan is progressing in line with its programmed timescale 
and a draft is still scheduled for late autumn. 

4. Financial and Staffing Implications 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

5. Legal and sustainability implications 

5.1 There are no legal or sustainability implications resulting from this report. 

6. Recommendation  

6.1 That Members note the contents of this report and the appendix, making any 
comments they wish to. 

Contact Officer: 
Ian Nicholls 
Head of Corporate Services 
01439 772700 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/158 Risk Title 201/158 - Financial Strategy 

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

Ho CS 

Description 

Failure to manage the Medium Term Financial Strategy in light of diminished funding with consequent risk to work 

programmes; continued loss of income due to ongoing c-19 pandemic, adverse impact on public finances 

associated with c-19 adversely affecting future levels of National Park grant; more limited external funding 

opportunities. Failure to continue to develop and implement the income generation strategy and property 

strategy. Increasing external uncertainty may become a more significant factor over the next 12 months. Failure 

to detect and act upon fraudulent activity. 

Risk 

Group 
Finance Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Reserves reviewed for adequacy; established budget monitoring processes; engagement with Defra and other partners; 

focus on income generation and seeking opportunities to optimise income; effective day to day financial management; 

Financial Framework developed to enable appropriate decision taking; Grants to third parties and future budget splits 

agreed; good, externally verified processes and financial control measures in place. 

Probability H  Objectives H  Financial H  Services H  Reputation H  Category 1  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 

 Action Manager 
Action 

by 
Completed % 

Reduction 201/19 - Ensure financial resources are able to match the revised National Park Management Plan outcomes All Mgt Board 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/20 - Set stretching but realistic income targets; continue to monitor performance of the income generating 

services against monetary expectations (ongoing)  
All Directors 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/21 - Continue to review and amend systems and processes to ensure value for money; eg changing 

invoice/expense processing; system changes to be subject to audit processes 
NYM Ho CS 

Wed-30-

Jun-21 
Fri-30-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 
201/22 - Property review to consider current funding of assets, establishing overarching aims for assets and 

funding to achieve this. This may require disposal of some current assets and/or borrowing 

All Members / Mgt 

Board 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 25% 

Reduction 
201/1281 - Plan a number of scenarios for how different levels of medium term budget settlements will be 

managed.  
NYM Ho Finance 

Thu-30-

Sep-21 
 20% 

Reduction 
201/1283 - Internal and external audits to ensure proper compliance with both internal processes and financial 

accounting standards  
NYM Ho Finance 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 
201/1288 - Continue external funding initiatives where they align with NPA objectives (ongoing, specifically 

natural environment and decarbonisation work). 

All Directors 

NYM CEO 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/1293 - Continue to horizon scan to identify and quantify changes to assumptions which underpin the MTFS 

and annual budget recognising the complexity and interdependencies (ongoing) 
NYM Ho CS 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/1963 - Continue to implement measures to combat fraud including keeping up to date with latest 

developments 
NYM Ho Finance 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 35% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability M  Objectives H  Financial H  Services M  Reputation M  Category 2  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 
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Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/527 Risk Title 201/527 - Capacity and Resilience 

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

Mgt 

Team 

Description 
A lack of capacity and resilience within the Authority to deliver the externally funded work programme and 

Business Plan aspirations leads to a significant decline in effectiveness, service quality &/or insufficient 

progress in carrying out required developments, increased absence and potential claims.  

Risk 

Group 
Capacity Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Revised Business Plan to April 2022 is clear about the Authority’s priorities; some resilience and capacity in key areas has been 

established (e.g finance is managed via external agreements). There is a good understanding of the impact our changing 

budget is having on core areas of work; there is active management of workload through the formal appraisal scheme; strong 

emphasis on making health/advice available to ensure wellbeing, flexible approach to working hours during c-19; managers 

encouraged to engage regularly with staff, particularly while homeworking.  

Probability H  Objectives H  Financial M  Services H  Reputation M  Category 1  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 

 Action Manager 
Action 

by 
Completed % 

Reduction 201/1734 - Develop and implement a plan for post c-19 working patterns. Plan developed by 30 April. NYM Ho CS 
Fri-30-Apr-

21 
Fri-30-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 
201/1735 - Perform an analysis of current workforce to include succession planning and recruitment based 

on future strategic requirements and use to inform strategic workforce development plan 
NYM Mgt Team 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 0% 

Reduction 
201/1736 - Members and senior officers to ensure that the focus of work is on delivering agreed BP targets 

(ongoing) 

NYM Members 

NYM Mgt Team 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/1880 - Ensure that there is effective communication, liaison and integrated working between teams in 

different Departments (ongoing) 
NYM Mgt Team 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/1881 - Ensure that annual Departmental Action Plans focus teams and individuals on essential work 

relating to the Business Plan targets  
NYM Mgt Team 

Thu-1-Apr-

21 
Thu-1-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 201/1886 - Ensure that the legal services contract is let with effect from 1 January 2022  NYM Ho CS 
Mon-31-

Jan-22 
 40% 

Reduction 
201/1888 - Full review of the Business Plan and National Park Management Plan to take place later in 2021 

Targets will take account of available resources and match workload to the staff and financial resources 

available so that we achieve a few matters well  

NYM Mgt Team 
Fri-31-

Dec-21 
 40% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability M  Objectives H  Financial M  Services H  Reputation M  Category 2  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/585 Risk Title 201/585 - Farming in Protected Landscape Programme 

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

DoC 

Description 

Failure to manage the operational, financial and reputational risks associated with the delivery of the Farming in 

Protected Landscape (FiPL) Programme. Specific risks include; lack of applications, inability to recruit effective 

delivery officers, financial risks associated with being the accountable body, clarity of funding post year 1, 

underspends, effectiveness of the assessment panel, performance of the authority in relation to other protected 

landscapes and high level of external scrutiny. 

Risk 

Group 
Financial Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 
Established relationship with DEFRA and national FiPL group. In house expertise available through experienced professional 

officer in post. Established processes and significant experience in delivering similar programmes (eg SDF & LEADER). Framework 

for programme delivery already established (albeit not yet available).Programme officer already recruited. 

Probability H  Objectives M  Financial H  Services M  Reputation H  Category 1  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 

 Action Manager 
Action 

by 
Completed % 

Reduction 
201/1975 - Ensure high awareness with effective local communication and engagement supported by national 

promotion  
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/1976 - Immediate recruitment of staff resource that can ‘hit the ground running’ to ensure recruitment 

competition is not a hindrance to delivery 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
Tue-27-Jul-21 100% 

Reduction 
201/1977 - Promotion of the programme as a complement to agri environment schemes to ensure that this 

programme does not inadvertently reduce land managed for conservation purposes 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/1978 - DEFRA ensures that the National Framework is flexible and puts in place training and support 

arrangements to reduce financial risk to the Authority as the accountable body 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 10% 

Reduction 
201/1979 - Careful awarding of contracts and financial management to ensure that the lack of clarity for funding 

post year 1 can be managed and the programme can continue to be delivered whatever the funding level is. 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 20% 

Reduction 
201/1980 - Ensure processes in place related to employment contracts that include contingencies for reduced 

funding in subsequent years. 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 20% 

Reduction 
201/1981 - Late start of the project means there is likely to be underspend so identifying potential priorities early and 

having staff in post to start supporting applicants will minimize this. 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/1982 - Working collaboratively with other Howardian Hills AONB and sharing an assessment panel to 

demonstrate collaboration in the Protected Landscape family. 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 100% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability M  Objectives H  Financial H  Services M  Reputation M  Category 2  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/493 Risk Title 201/493 - Minerals Development Pressure on the Park  

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

DoP 

Description 

Lack of capacity and resources both within the Authority and partner organisations to deal with the complex 

issues relating to the actual/potential extraction of minerals (conventional gas, shale gas and potash) resulting in 

an inability to effectively assess the environmental impact with the socio economic benefits, negative impact on 

other Authority work; potential for reputational damage both locally and nationally, legal action, negative 

financial impact and knock on effects to other work as resources transferred 

Risk 

Group 

First and Second 

Purpose & Statutory 

Duty 
Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Professional advice where appropriate, engagement with partner organisations and other involved bodies, recovery of an 

element of costs through appropriate mechanisms such as Planning Performance Agreement; Legal and Environmental advisors 

in place, public meetings held when appropriate, regular advice and reporting to Members, dialogue with Govt and local MPs 

where appropriate; impact assessment on National Park Purposes and possible mitigation measures carried out, public relations 

activity, financial planning where appropriate, continued commitment to impartiality and objectivity in the determination 

process; firm “corporate Authority” approach to Fracking in or under the National Park;  

Probability M  Objectives H  Financial H  Services M  Reputation H  Category 2  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 

 Action Manager 
Action 

by 
Completed % 

Reduction 
201/13 - Continue to monitor costs and review adequacy of resources, including recognising the long term need 

for in-house minerals planning expertise and keep a watch on planning workloads (ongoing) 

NYM DoP 

NYM Ho CS 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 
201/196 - Proactively manage media interest and effectively communicate the National Park’s position 

(ongoing) 
NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 
201/199 - Continue to monitor new developments including the Government’s moratorium on fracking using 

planning officers society and peer groups effectively (ongoing) 
NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 
201/201 - Proactive liaison and negotiation with mineral companies wishing to extract in the National Park 

(ongoing) 
NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 201/863 - Ongoing communications re progress to all stakeholders NYM DoP 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 
201/864 - Maintain access to consultancy assistance to provide professional and technical assistance where 

needed, as well as access to legal advice where necessary, particularly around Boulby Potash Mining during 

2021-22. 

NYM CEO 

NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 201/866 - Monitoring compliance with planning permissions and S 106 agreements where applicable (ongoing) NYM DoP 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 
201/867 - Monitor performance of specialist professional support and ensure appropriate measures are in place 

to maintain continuity of expertise (ongoing) 
NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 
201/868 - Plan for and seek resources to ensure ability to manage the planning application process and delivery 

of our Purposes (ongoing) 
NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 

Reduction 
201/950 - Completion of a Joint Minerals and Waste Plan. Progress to adoption following consultation on main 

modifications in 2021 and subject to final Inspector’s report. Adoption expected early 2022.  
NYM DoP 

Tue-31-

Aug-21 
 75% 

Reduction 
201/1287 - Continue to assess the ‘corporate Authority’ approach on shale gas in line with developing 

government policy and the requirements of a statutory planning Authority (ongoing) 
NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 15% 
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Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability M  Objectives M  Financial M  Services L  Reputation H  Category 2  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/203 Risk Title 201/203 - Health and Safety  Risk Owner NYM CEO Manager 

NYM Ho 

CS 

Description 
Failure to meet Health and Safety statutory requirements resulting in possible loss of life/serious 

injuries, prosecution, claims, reputational damage and fines.  
Risk Group Health and Safety Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Cross departmental Health and Safety Group meeting regularly; appropriate health and safety policies; risk assessments of all activities; 

annual corporate action plans; periodic reviews of health and safety practice; individual responsibility made clear in job descriptions; 

initial training and refresher training periods established; regular managerial monitoring of health and safety practice, including; 

strengthened reporting processes and checks on compliance; health and safety standards made explicit to external contractors; 

volunteers are routinely briefed on H&S prior to practical work tasks; Service Level Agreement with NYCC to provide additional expert 

support; routinely discussed at team meetings and Directors meetings; enhanced IoSH training for Managers; All Departments have 

targets to carry out spot checks on staff, volunteers and contractors; Directors have individual spot check targets to support this; 

contracts/agreements with associate volunteer groups etc agreed; good support both internally (through mental health first aiders and 

prevailing management style) and externally via Health Assured. 

Probability M  Objectives M  Financial M  Services M  Reputation H  Category 2  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 
 Action Manager Action by Completed % 

Reduction 
201/1303 - Engage and engender ownership in staff of Health & Safety via a series of different 

methods e.g. training, bulletin, posters, departmental meetings, team meetings. Plan to be 

developed by 30 June, then (ongoing) 

NYM Ho CS 
Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 20% 

Reduction 
201/1305 - Provide information for the progress report to members quarterly to allow scrutiny of 

actions June, September, November 2021 and February 2022 
NYM Ho CS 

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 50% 

Reduction 201/1306 - Implement agreed annual health & safety action plan for 2021/22 NYM Ho CS 
Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/1389 - Ensure contracts/agreements are in place with associate volunteer groups, 

community groups and others prior to commencement of tasks (ongoing) 

NYM DIR PS 

NYM Ho CS 

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 35% 

Reduction 
201/1741 - Develop and implement a programme of communication on health and safety 

matters for volunteers, using a variety of different communication methods (plan to be 

developed by 31 May 2021, implementation then ongoing) 

NYM Ho CS 

NYM Ho Vol Service  

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 20% 

Reduction 

201/1743 - Assess the effectiveness of volunteer Task Day Leaders (TDL) training by; a) 

organising regular meetings of TDLs with h&s as an agenda item; b) regular spot checking of 

activities which are led by TDLs; c) develop (by 31 May) and implement a timetable for the 

above 2 activities (ongoing) 

NYM Ho CS 

NYM Ho Vol Service  

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 20% 

Reduction 
201/1744 - Assess Corporate Health and Safety Performance using the LGA matrix and take 

actions as appropriate. (next assessment November 2021) 
NYM Ho CS 

Sun-31-Oct-

21 
 0% 

Reduction 
201/1747 - Ensure appropriate training is provided to Members relating to compliance with H&S 

procedures and practices 
NYM Ho CS 

Sun-31-Oct-

21 
 0% 

Reduction 
201/1948 - Ensure that all key tasks are risk assessed in relation to c-19 and that these are 

reviewed frequently, taking the latest national advice into account. Action to take place 

every 2 months.  

NYM Ho CS 
Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 35% 
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Reduction 
201/1957 - Ensure that support for mental health is publicised via regular communication and 

that initiatives are set up and run by mental health first aiders. Programme for these initiative to 

be in place by 1 April 

NYM Ho CS Thu-1-Apr-21 Thu-1-Apr-21 100% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability M  Objectives M  Financial M  Services M  Reputation H  Category 2  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/583 Risk Title 201/583 - Devolution Implications (for NPA’s Planning Role) 

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

DoP 

Description 
Potential of the Authority’s spatial planning role being superseded/transferred to a devolved combined 

authority with mayoral statutory planning powers resulting in disjointed strategic planning for the area and 

reduced ability to deliver the national park statutory purposes. 

Risk 

Group 
Strategic Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Raising awareness of potential consequences of impact of a combined authority statutory spatial development strategy on NPAs 

planning role through engagement with DEFRA and MHCLG representatives, joint working with Yorkshire Dales National Park, Authority 

resolution to protect NPAs planning role, including through efforts to seek changes in legislation if required and positive engagement 

with the LEP and other local authorities involved in the York and North Yorkshire Devolution submission  

Probability M  Objectives H  Financial L  Services H  Reputation H  Category 2  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 

 Action Manager 
Action 

by 
Completed % 

Reduction 
201/1291 - Continue to engage with Government departments to press for legal resolution to potential threat 

to NPA planning role 

NYM CEO 

NYM DoP 

Fri-30-Apr-

21 
Fri-30-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 
201/1292 - Extend joint working to increase engagement at national level – through National Parks England 

lobbying role 

NYM CEO 

NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 
201/1312 - Raise political lobbying through contact with MPs, particularly high profile MPs with NP 

constituencies and contact DEFRA Minister. 
NYM CEO 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 
201/1314 - Continue to support the devolution submission in principle but maintain NPAs stated position on its 

planning role through ongoing engagement with local authorities in the YNY area 

NYM CEO 

NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 
201/1955 - Seek maximum awareness of the potential weakening of / to the planning role of NPAs and 

protection of English National Parks through direct media communication.  

NYM CEO 

NYM Comms Officer 

NYM DoP 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability L  Objectives H  Financial L  Services H  Reputation H  Category 3  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/488 Risk Title 201/488 - Wildlife and Biodiversity  

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM DIR 

CONSERV 

Description 
Failure to create opportunities for wildlife and biodiversity in the Park resulting in a reduction 

of species, loss of reputation and financial impact. 

Risk 

Group 
 Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Delivery plans formulated and responsibility for delivery linked into annual appraisal system for individuals; using established delivery 

process and ways of working (agreed NPA grant procedures/criteria) compliant with state aid requirements; holding regular team 

meetings to review progress and share good practice; building on established working relationships with partners and land managers and 

developing collaborative approaches; have additional capacity if required through local consultants; externally funded schemes 

fundamental to wildlife corridor delivery, improving monitoring to demonstrate delivery; annual reporting to Members via NPA/Scrutiny 

Committee; forward delivery plan to deliver Business Plan targets in place;  

Probability H  Objectives M  Financial M  Services M  Reputation M  Category 2  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 
 Action Manager Action by Completed % 

Reduction 

201/25 - Continue to review rationales to make sure that they are up to date with the 

ecological priorities of the North York Moors, current best practice and new understanding 

of target species requirements, whilst at the same time ensuring no harm is caused to non-

target species and change is sustainable (ongoing) 

NYM DIR CONSERV 

NYM Ho Nat Env 

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 50% 

Reduction 201/26 - Review Departmental delivery plan progress and budgets on a monthly basis 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

NYM Ho Nat Env 

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/31 - Continue to improve communication/promotion of habitat connectivity concepts 

and NPA’s objectives/progress with NPA staff/Members, farmers and land owners to explain 

the benefits and encourage a proactive approach  

NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 50% 

Reduction 

201/32 - Continue to look for opportunities to deliver effectively on a large scale and think 

strategically, whilst maintaining a legally compliant and value for money approach; 

Ongoing through Ryevitalise and early thoughts for s106; also discussions with National Trust 

regarding Bransdale opportunities to be continued  

NYM DIR CONSERV 

NYM Ho Nat Env 

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 60% 

Reduction 
201/34 - Continue to review our approach and priority for this area following Brexit, 

Ryevitalise and the ELMS and look for further opportunities 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/190 - Work with others including Natural England to ensure their activities are aligned 

with Park Purposes 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 50% 

Reduction 201/191 - Ensure forest design plans deliver Park Purposes NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 50% 

Reduction 201/192 - Finalise the Wildlife Delivery Plan  NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-Mar-

22 
Thu-1-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 201/193 - Implement the Wildlife Delivery Plan  NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-Mar-

22 
 30% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability M  Objectives M  Financial M  Services L  Reputation L  Category 4  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
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 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/581 Risk Title 201/581 - Landscapes Review 

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

CEO 

Description 

Failure to effectively engage with Government in taking forward its response to the Landscapes Review (including 

creation of a new National Landscapes Service) potentially resulting in changes to statutory responsibilities, 

reduced flexibility to procure & operate specific services, structural changes at local level resulting from 

implementation of new central body, governance changes that limit local accountability of the NPA and 

damage its reputation.  

Risk 

Group 
Strategic Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 
Close liaison taking place between National Parks England & Defra is resulting in effective flow of information about 

government’s intentions. Building relationships with Defra officials with view to influencing outcomes. Defra has signalled 

intention to make a response in early 2021. NPA has published a response to Landscape review recommendations. 

Probability M  Objectives L  Financial H  Services M  Reputation L  Category 2  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 

 Action Manager 
Action 

by 
Completed % 

Reduction 
201/210 - Contribute constructively to conclusion of government’s response to Review and subsequent 

implementation of recommendations 

NYM CEO 

NYM Members 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 201/211 - Co-ordinate with other NPAs in gathering intelligence and providing input to Defra NYM CEO 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 201/212 - Maintain/ increase collaboration with other NPAs & AONBS 
All Directors 

NYM CEO 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 201/213 - Inform & engage key stakeholders on NYMNPA views including MPs 
NYM CEO 

NYM Chair 

Wed-30-

Jun-21 

Wed-30-Jun-

21 
100% 

Reduction 201/214 - Ensure effective communications to and manage expectations with Members and staff 
NYM CEO 

NYM Chair 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

Reduction 201/215 - Contingency planning for plausible outcomes and potential range of impacts 
All Directors 

NYM CEO 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 40% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability L  Objectives L  Financial L  Services L  Reputation L  Category 5  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/582 Risk Title 201/582 - Management Plan 

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

CEO 

Description 
Failure to effectively develop and agree a new National Park Management Plan (particularly in the light 

of the Landscapes Review) resulting in lack of strategic clarity for National Park Authority and erosion of 

confidence amongst major stakeholders.  

Risk 

Group 
Strategic Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Member-led Management Plan Working Group in place to report to the NPA and oversee the process. Internal staff group with 

project sponsorship by CEO and full-time project management via Head of Policy. Detailed project plan with detailed timeline 

and critical dependencies drawn up. NPE working group created and led by CEO NYMNPA to co-ordinate on consistency with 

other NPAs. Early engagement with Defra and other statutory agencies such as Natural England and Forestry Commission. 

Formation of Thematic Working Groups to provide partner input and strong stakeholder engagement 

Probability M  Objectives H  Financial L  Services M  Reputation H  Category 2  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 
 Action Manager Action by Completed % 

Reduction 201/216 - Management Plan WG to be constituted, chair appointed and cycle of meetings arranged 
NYM CEO 

NYM DoP 

Fri-31-Dec-

21 
Thu-1-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 201/218 - Regular review of the project plan (ongoing) 
NYM CEO 

NYM DoP 

Fri-30-Apr-

21 
 30% 

Reduction 
201/219 - External engagement and consultation approach to be set up with focus on engagement with 

critical and statutory consultees 

NYM CEO 

NYM DoP 

Wed-31-

Mar-21 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/221 - Defra and NPA CEOs to ensure consistency and alignment of MP content with outcomes of 

Glover Review 
NYM CEO 

Fri-31-Dec-

21 
 30% 

Reduction 
201/231 - Develop the Authority Business Plan in parallel with the Management Plan to reduce risk of 

inertia in the event of delay to the Management Plan 

All Directors 

NYM CEO 

NYM Ho PM 

Thu-30-

Sep-21 
 30% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability L  Objectives L  Financial L  Services L  Reputation L  Category 5  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/464 Risk Title 201/464 - Woodsmith Mine - Implementation  

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM 

DoC 

Description 

Failure to deliver the terms of the Section 106 agreement and effectively manage the planning implementation 

aspects of the development including any subsequent permissions resulting in adverse national / international 

publicity and harm to the National Park and local residents. The authority:- a) fails to meet its obligations as a 

Planning Authority in discharging Planning Conditions; b) is unable to deliver the mitigating and compensatory 

elements of the Section 106 and this therefore causes harm to the Park; c) fails to plan sufficiently so that overall 

scale of dealing with the implementation of the development significantly disrupts the functioning of the rest of the 

organisation 

Risk 

Group 
Strategic Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 

Compensation/mitigation plan in place; Financial resources available; annually reviewed key contribution security and 

restoration bond in place; appropriate knowledge and expertise in place; close collaboration to ensure necessary resources 

are available to achieve alignment of project timetables; Community Forum in place; financial monitoring arrangements in 

place; strict separation of 106 Sirius monies from core resources marketing and tourism plans in place; good relationship and 

clarity with Third Parties regarding the s106 agreement; arrangements set up for timely completion of annual and occasional 

legal agreements with both Sirius and with 3rd parties; external audit of management of s106 monies; new project manager 

recruited; further integration with Conservation team achieved;  

Probability L  Objectives H  Financial H  Services H  Reputation H  Category 3  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 

 Action Manager 
Action 

by 
Completed % 

Reduction 
201/1628 - Continue to work with Sirius Minerals /or successor company to ensure a positive working relationship to 

enable the discharging of planning conditions and the commencement of the development to progress as 

smoothly as possible (ongoing) 

NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/1738 - Ongoing Implementation of action plan for delivery of all compensatory aspects of S106 Agreement 

(ongoing) 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Sat-30-

Apr-22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/1739 - Ensure robust processes are followed and seek external advice where risk areas are identified in relation 

to major scheme changes (ongoing) 
NYM DIR CONSERV 

Sat-30-

Apr-22 
 50% 

Reduction 201/1740 - Implementation of the findings of the Tourism Impact Review (ongoing) NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

Reduction 201/1873 - Work with major landowners to identify woodland creation sites (ongoing) NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

Reduction 201/1893 - Monitor ongoing situation of Sirius Minerals’ development funding NYM DIR CONSERV 
Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability L  Objectives M  Financial H  Services M  Reputation H  Category 3  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Phase 1 - Identification 

Risk 

Number 
201/560 Risk Title 201/560 - Climate Change Arrangements for the Park Authority 

Risk 

Owner 
NYM CEO Manager 

NYM Ho 

CS 

Description 
Failure to achieve net carbon zero or positive for the National Park Authority by 2030 resulting in inability 

to meet public expectations, government targets for public bodies and significant reputational damage.  

Risk 

Group 
Strategic Risk Type  

 

Phase 2 - Current Assessment 

Current Control Measures 
Many long standing reductions in energy use in buildings; member of All UK National Parks Climate Change Action Group; decision made 

to procure electric fleet vehicles by 2024; Climate Change and Carbon Reduction Officer in place from Jan 2021; all electricity used by 

the NPA is supplied from renewable sources. Work programme in place 

Probability M  Objectives L  Financial L  Services L  Reputation M  Category 4  
 

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions 
 Action Manager Action by Completed % 

Reduction 
201/18 - Establish a clear and shared understanding of the current UK policy framework as it relates to 

targets for the public sector  
NYM Ho CS 

Thu-1-Apr-

21 
Thu-1-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 201/1282 - Initiate procurement to replace existing fleet with electric vehicles 
NYM CEO 

NYM Ho CS 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 10% 

Reduction 
201/1289 - Check existing data on energy use for accuracy and establish simple robust systems for on-

going monitoring 
NYM Ho CS 

Thu-1-Apr-

21 
Thu-1-Apr-21 100% 

Reduction 
201/1290 - Establish a programme of communication with staff to raise awareness and enhance their 

contribution to carbon reduction  

NYM DIR CONSERV 

NYM Ho CS 

Mon-31-

May-21 
 75% 

Reduction 
201/1295 - Establish a priority order of work to maximise carbon reduction in NPA’s activities with a clear 

understanding of costs  
NYM Ho CS 

Mon-31-

May-21 
 75% 

Reduction 
201/1392 - Develop an NPA carbon reduction policy covering travel, procurement of goods and 

buildings, linking to the national policy framework  
NYM Ho CS 

Sat-31-Jul-

21 
 70% 

Reduction 201/1742 - Establish the levels of carbon reduction likely to accrue from post c-19 revised working patterns NYM Ho CS 
Sat-31-Jul-

21 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/1748 - Explore opportunities and find financial support to secure resources to carry out 

decarbonisation of the Authority’s buildings work 

NYM Members 

NYM Mgt Team 

Thu-31-

Mar-22 
 50% 

Reduction 
201/1884 - Establish the terms of reference and undertake a review of the Authority’s property, with one 

of the outcomes being a significant reduction in carbon emissions 
NYM Ho CS 

Fri-31-Dec-

21 
 50% 

 

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment 

Probability M  Objectives L  Financial L  Services L  Reputation L  Category 5  
 

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan 
 Action Manager 

Fallback 

Plan 
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Identity Person Classification 

Change  Risk Title Risk Description 
Risk 

Owner 

Risk 

Manager 

Pre RR Post 

Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat RRs 
Next 

Action 
Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat 

 

201/158 - 

Financial 

Strategy 

Failure to manage the Medium Term Financial Strategy in 

light of diminished funding with consequent risk to work 

programmes; continued loss of income due to ongoing c-19 

pandemic, adverse impact on public finances associated 

with c-19 adversely affecting future levels of National Park 

grant; more limited external funding opportunities. Failure to 

continue to develop and implement the income generation 

strategy and property strategy. Increasing external 

uncertainty may become a more significant factor over the 

next 12 months. Failure to detect and act upon fraudulent 

activity. 

NYM 

CEO 

NYM Ho 

CS 
H H H H H 1 9 30/09/2021 M H H M M 2 

 

201/527 - 

Capacity and 

Resilience 

A lack of capacity and resilience within the Authority to 

deliver the externally funded work programme and Business 

Plan aspirations leads to a significant decline in 

effectiveness, service quality &/or insufficient progress in 

carrying out required developments, increased absence 

and potential claims. 

NYM 

CEO 

NYM Mgt 

Team 
H H M H M 1 7 31/12/2021 M H M H M 2 

- new - 

201/585 - 

Farming in 

Protected 

Landscape 

Programme 

Failure to manage the operational, financial and 

reputational risks associated with the delivery of the Farming 

in Protected Landscape (FiPL) Programme. Specific risks 

include; lack of applications, inability to recruit effective 

delivery officers, financial risks associated with being the 

accountable body, clarity of funding post year 1, 

underspends, effectiveness of the assessment panel, 

performance of the authority in relation to other protected 

landscapes and high level of external scrutiny. 

NYM 

CEO 
NYM DoC H M H M H 1 8 31/03/2022 M H H M M 2 

 

201/493 - 

Minerals 

Development 

Pressure on the 

Park 

Lack of capacity and resources both within the Authority 

and partner organisations to deal with the complex issues 

relating to the actual/potential extraction of minerals 

(conventional gas, shale gas and potash) resulting in an 

inability to effectively assess the environmental impact with 

the socio economic benefits, negative impact on other 

Authority work; potential for reputational damage both 

locally and nationally, legal action, negative financial 

impact and knock on effects to other work as resources 

transferred 

NYM 

CEO 
NYM DoP M H H M H 2 11 31/03/2022 M M M L H 2 

 
201/203 - Health 

and Safety 

Failure to meet Health and Safety statutory requirements 

resulting in possible loss of life/serious injuries, prosecution, 

claims, reputational damage and fines. 

NYM 

CEO 

NYM Ho 

CS 
M M M M H 2 10 31/10/2021 M M M M H 2 
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Identity Person Classification 

Change  Risk Title Risk Description 
Risk 

Owner 

Risk 

Manager 

Pre RR Post 

Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat RRs 
Next 

Action 
Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat 

 

201/583 - 

Devolution 

Implications (for 

NPA’s Planning 

Role) 

Potential of the Authority’s spatial planning role being 

superseded/transferred to a devolved combined authority 

with mayoral statutory planning powers resulting in 

disjointed strategic planning for the area and reduced 

ability to deliver the national park statutory purposes. 

NYM 

CEO 
NYM DoP M H L H H 2 5 31/03/2022 L H L H H 3 

 

201/488 - 

Wildlife and 

Biodiversity 

Failure to create opportunities for wildlife and biodiversity in 

the Park resulting in a reduction of species, loss of reputation 

and financial impact. 

NYM 

CEO 

NYM DIR 

CONSERV 
H M M M M 2 9 31/03/2022 M M M L L 4 

 

201/581 - 

Landscapes 

Review 

Failure to effectively engage with Government in taking 

forward its response to the Landscapes Review (including 

creation of a new National Landscapes Service) potentially 

resulting in changes to statutory responsibilities, reduced 

flexibility to procure & operate specific services, structural 

changes at local level resulting from implementation of new 

central body, governance changes that limit local 

accountability of the NPA and damage its reputation. 

NYM 

CEO 
NYM CEO M L H M L 2 6 31/03/2022 L L L L L 5 

 

201/582 - 

Management 

Plan 

Failure to effectively develop and agree a new National 

Park Management Plan (particularly in the light of the 

Landscapes Review) resulting in lack of strategic clarity for 

National Park Authority and erosion of confidence amongst 

major stakeholders. 

NYM 

CEO 
NYM CEO M H L M H 2 5 31/03/2021 L L L L L 5 

 

201/464 - 

Woodsmith Mine 

- 

Implementation 

Failure to deliver the terms of the Section 106 agreement 

and effectively manage the planning implementation 

aspects of the development including any subsequent 

permissions resulting in adverse national / international 

publicity and harm to the National Park and local residents. 

The authority:- a) fails to meet its obligations as a Planning 

Authority in discharging Planning Conditions; b) is unable to 

deliver the mitigating and compensatory elements of the 

Section 106 and this therefore causes harm to the Park; c) 

fails to plan sufficiently so that overall scale of dealing with 

the implementation of the development significantly 

disrupts the functioning of the rest of the organisation 

NYM 

CEO 
NYM DoC L H H H H 3 6 31/03/2022 L M H M H 3 

 

201/560 - 

Climate Change 

Arrangements 

for the Park 

Authority 

Failure to achieve net carbon zero or positive for the 

National Park Authority by 2030 resulting in inability to meet 

public expectations, government targets for public bodies 

and significant reputational damage. 

NYM 

CEO 

NYM Ho 

CS 
M L L L M 4 9 31/05/2021 M L L L L 5 
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Key  

 Risk Ranking has worsened since last review. 

 Risk Ranking has improved since last review 

 Risk Ranking is same as last review 

- new - New or significantly altered risk 
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North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

31 August 2021 

Item 13, External funding 

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To update Members on the work currently being undertaken to secure external
funding which will help support the Authority’s work programmes and priorities.

2. Background

2.1 This report provides an overview of the Authority’s external funding position
within the current financial year and an update on projects which require external
funding. It continues the previous reports to this Committee which have kept
Members abreast of our activity in this important area of work.

3. External funding position

3.1 The table below provides a summary of all external funded income secured or
sought by the Authority for the new financial year 21/22 only.

Category Amount(£) 

Secured £1.92m 

Unsecured - with application 
made 

£33k 

Unsecured - in development £112k 

Total £2.07m 

3.2 Table 2 provides a forecast of all external funding income. Note this includes 
income from externally funded projects that are in delivery. Totals are given for 
each stage of activity: secured, unsecured with an application made and in 
development. 
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Table 2: External funding forecast 
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4. Current external funding activity 

4.1 Table 3 below provides an update on projects. These reflect the external funding 
priorities in the Business Plan. Please note that the table does not include some 
project ideas that are at a very early stage of officer discussions, nor does it 
include externally funded projects that have been approved and are now in 
delivery. 
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Table 3: Externally funded projects update showing projects in development, those that have been submitted and are now awaiting a 
funding decision, and those that have been unsuccessful. 

Project title 
 

Brief description  
 

Funder 
 

Partners Strategic 
fit 

Staffing 
implications 

Match 
requirement 

Total 
income 

Status 

An 
Investment 
Model For 
Catchment-
Scale Nature 
Restoration 
In The Esk 
Valley 

Working with the Esk 
Valley Farmers Group 
(EVFG) over 10,500 
ha, this pilot will be a 
blueprint for 
catchment-scale 
nature restoration in 
the National Park. 
 
The Financial 
potential of the 
model will be proven 
to attract private 
investment into 
catchment-scale 
projects. 
 
Delivery will take 
place from 2021 to 
2022. 

Natural 
Environme
nt 
Investment 
Readiness 
Fund 
(NEIRF) via 
DEFRA 

NPP (National 
Parks 
Partnership) 
Palladium, Esk 
Farmers 
Facilitation 
Group 

MP: C4,C5, 
E5, E8, E14-
E18,E19, 
E36-E44 
 

Part Time 
Project Officer 
and 
consultancy 
time included in 
bid.  

£128k total 
project cost 
 
Partner 
match 
consisting of: 
 
£29.1k (In-
kind) 
 

£49.9k Secured 
 
Project 
recruitment 
commencing. 
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Project title 
 

Brief description  
 

Funder 
 

Partners Strategic 
fit 

Staffing 
implications 

Match 
requirement 

Total 
income 

Status 

Decarbonisat
ion of 
Authority 
Buildings 

Application to 
replace the existing 
carbon-based boilers 
at Sutton Bank VC, 
Moors Centre, Old 
Vicarage and Sawmill 
Lane with a low 
carbon alternatives 
and improve energy 
efficiency measures 

Public 
Sector 
Decarbonis
ation 
Scheme  

None National 
Parks Net 
Zero 

None The Authority 
will be 
expected to 
meet the cost 
difference 
between a 
like-for-like 
replacement 
and the 
chosen low 
carbon 
alterative 
heat source 
(estimate 
£7k-£15k per 
building) 

Sutton 
Bank 
~£125k 
Old 
Vicarage, 
Moors 
Centre, 
Sawmill 
Lance TBC 

Unsecured – 
Application In 
Development. 
 
Currently 
procuring 
quotes and 
awaiting next 
funding round. 

Mosaic 
Green 
Recovery 
Champions 

Project to help better 
connect Black, Asian 
and Minority Ethnic 
(BAME) communities 
with National 
Landscapes. 
 
The project will 
delivery from mid-
2021 to November 
2022. 

NLHF 
Open 
Grants 
Programm
e 

YDNPA, 
PDNPA, Peak 
District 
Mosaic 

U16,U13, 
U14, U10, 
U11 

Full Time 
Project Officer 
and one 
Apprenticeship 
funded through 
project. 

£2k £500k 
total (£67k 
to  

Unsecured - 
Application 
made 
 
Following 
issuing with 
GRCF 
deadline, 
application will 
now be made 
to NLHF core 
grant 
programme 
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5. Priorities for external funding 

5.1 Alongside the development of the new Management and Business Plans, work 
has begun to identify which areas of activity should be prioritised for external 
funding and what funding sources might be appropriate. 

5.2 This work is taking account recent changes to priorities within funders’ existing 
funding streams as well as new sources including the Shared Prosperity and 
Levelling-Up Funds. It is also important to understand the implications of 
changes to the Local Enterprise Partnerships and local government reform and 
how that may affect how the Authority accesses funding in the future. 

5.3 Finally, officers are developing a pipeline of work that needs to take place in 
order to ensure that projects are adequately developed to respond to potential 
funding calls as well as how best to maximise match funding opportunities 
through S106 and Farming in Protected Landscapes. 

6. Nature for climate peatland capital grant scheme: discovery grant 

6.1 The Natural England Discovery Grant provides funding to support the 
development of new peatland restoration partnerships and projects for delivery 
of multiple ecosystem service benefits including carbon storage, increased 
biodiversity, water quality and water level management. 

6.2 The fund is looking for projects in England no fixed size (area or cost) looking to 
support partnership and project development that will result in landscape scale 
restoration schemes. 

6.3 The Authority is preparing an application, in partnership with Palladium, to survey 
the extent and condition of the deep peat within the National Park. This would 
enable the Authority to baseline existing peatland in preparation for subsequent 
applications to the related Natural England Peat Recovery Fund, along with other 
funding mechanisms, including agri-environment and private financing.  Officers 
will provide a verbal update relating to the project at Committee. 

7. Contribution to National Park Management Plan 

7.1 Contributions from individual projects are listed in table 3. 

8. Legal and sustainability implications 

8.1 None at this stage. 

9. Recommendation  

9.1 That Members approve the contents of the report and agree the current work 
being done to secure external funding. 

Contact Officer:  
Tom Stephenson, External Funding Officer 
01439 772700 
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North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

Thursday 31 August 2021 

Item 14, IT Update 

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To update Members on work being carried out over the coming months to
support and develop the Authority’s information communications technology.

2. Office 365 rollout

2.1 In April 2021 the Authority invested in Microsoft 365 licences and started a
project to rollout the technology across the Authority with an initial focus on
migration of email from on premise to online and the rollout of Teams across the
Authority. These two areas have largely been completed and we have seen a
good level of uptake of Teams allowing officers to work more collaboratively,
which has been particularly helpful in working remotely

2.2 The IT Team are now setting up the Sharepoint environment with a view to
making this the preferred method for storing files, providing an organisation
wide Intranet and eventually will replace the Members’ Extranet as well. The
intention is that this will continue to progress made on removing paper from all
day to day working processes. This is considered to be vital to enable the
Authority to operate in smaller premises where desk sharing is the norm.

2.3 The IT Team are also starting a pilot roll out of using the new Microsoft 365 
Office versions of Word, Excel, and Powerpoint to confirm that they are 
compatible with all systems we use. 

3. Server room move

3.1 The IT Team are in the process of moving the server infrastructure to a secure
room in the Studio. This is being done to ensure that servers can be stored in a
private area, only accessible to the IT team, and the existing server room is below
ground level and has been prone to water ingress.

3.2 The network infrastructure has been put in place and we are planning the move 
of the servers over the coming month with a goal to complete the migration by 
the end of September. This will involve the complete shutdown all the systems 
so will have to be carried out of hours and most likely over a weekend. 
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4. Reducing lines of communication 

4.1 Over the last year we have introduced a lot of new technology and ways of 
communicating with each other. The systems have been introduced speedily to 
facilitate home working and we have a few areas where there is duplication, so 
some colleagues are finding this difficult in terms of, what is the best way to 
communicate with someone and what is the preferred Authority default for the 
different methods of communication. 

4.2 In July the IT Manager reviewed each of these different methods of 
communication and proposed to SLT the preferred options moving forward. 
These were agreed and have now been shared with the rest of the Authority. 

4.3 We have now removed/disabled a number of communications tools including 
Lifesize as we move to using Teams for both internal and external video 
conferencing. Whilst Lifesize has been invaluable over the last year and meant 
that the Authority could continue to properly function and fulfil its 
responsibilities, it was felt that Teams offered more to the Authority and is much 
more widely used in other government bodies and the private sector. 

5. Financial and staffing implications 

5.1 Time in lieu will be given for time working out of hours for the server room move. 

6. Recommendation  

6.1 That Members note the diverse work being carried out to support and develop 
the Authority’s ICT. 

Contact Officer: 
Simon Baum 
IT Manager 
01439 772700 
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North York Moors National Park Authority 

Finance, Risk, Audit and Standards Committee 

31 August 2021 

Item 15, North York Moors Trust action plan and future resources 

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To report on the strategic review carried out by the North York Moors National
Park Trust and to approve the Authority’s ongoing commitment and support.

2. Background

2.1 The North York Moors National Park Trust was set up in 2015 to promote the
sustainability, conservation, protection & enhancement of the North York Moors
and its communities. The organisation is an independent company limited by
guarantee and a charitable trust led by a group of volunteer Trustees/Directors
supported by a small team of part time staff. The Trust is closely aligned to, but
independent from, the NYM National Park Authority with the Authority providing
in kind and staff time to support the work of the Trust.

2.2 Five years since its inception, the Trustees initiated a strategic review to 
consider the future direction and resources of the charity. Whilst a considerable 
amount has been achieved from a standing start, the Trustees consider that 
changes are required to ensure that the Trust is in the best possible shape to 
help secure the future of the National Park. 

2.3 Amongst its notable achievements the Trust has organised biennial Art and 
Young Ranger Awards, facilitated the Goathland Centenary trail and reached 
agreement on an extension to Anya’s Wood near Hawnby following an important 
legacy donation received by the charity. Above all, the Trust has been able to 
support the National Park Authority’s ability to leverage external funding and 
commission the Authority to deliver works by playing host to the Catchment 
Based Approach (CaBa) funding from the Environment Agency and more 
recently a successful bid to the Green Recovery Challenge Fund (GRCF) to set up 
the Woodland Restoration Team. This ability to draw in external funding as a 
charity to support more activity that benefits the National Park remains 
compelling. 

2.4 At the same time, the Trust has struggled to promote itself and create sufficient 
awareness as a stand-alone charity to draw in donations and legacies that could 
help provide working capital to enable the charity to grow and become more self-
reliant and ambitious. A major limiting factor is the lack of dedicated resource 
providing an executive ‘engine room’ to steer and run the Charity which remains 
heavily dependent on the financial support, spare time and goodwill of Authority 
staff and Trustees alike. 

116



2.5 The Board of nine Trustees is made up of three Authority Members and five 
independent members with the Authority’s CEO being (constitutionally) a 
permanent Trustee and Chair of the Trust. 

3. Trust priorities 2021 – 26 

3.1 Following a strategic review over the last 6 months, the Trustees have agreed an 
action plan consisting of six priorities for the next 5 years to improve the Trust’s 
ability and capacity to make a difference in the National Park. These are: 

-  To put more focus on an annual basis behind a single campaign whilst remaining 
open and opportunistic to wider opportunities within the existing broad remit of 
the Trust 

-  To use the charitable status of the Trust to help secure additional third party 
funding to complement the work of the Authority 

-  Invigorate the communications of the Trust and the good work it is supporting 

- Strengthen the profile of the Trust as an independent charity in order to 
campaign and fundraise more effectively 

-  Take a broader approach to fundraising in order to secure more ‘free cash’ to 
support the Trust’s long term financial sustainability 

-  Invest reserves (up to 50%) over the next three years to bolster its executive 
resources to drive the rest of the action plan and meet the Trusts ambitions 

Trustees have indicated that initial key campaign areas should be raising the 
profile of the Trust; building on of the successful Turtle Dove project through the 
development of a broader Birds on the Edge proposal; seeking to extend the 
work of the GRCF-funded Woodland Restoration team; developing the 2022 Art 
Award. The Trust is also keen to promote and develop the profile of Anya’s Wood 
through a series of events, tree planting and woodland management schemes.  

4. Relationship to the National Park Authority  

4.1 The Trustees are keen to retain a close relationship with the NPA which they 
believe brings mutual benefit. For the Authority this comes in the form of a 
charitable partner, able to secure additional funds to bolster the work of the 
Authority and to undertake works that furthers the outcomes of the National 
Park Management Plan. For the Trust, this comes in the form of expertise and 
resources from the Authority that help it to deliver its objectives.  

4.2 The Trustees believe that the Trust needs a more distinct identity separate from 
the Authority and a more obviously semi-detached relationship. As a result, 
Trustees, are keen to redraft the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding 
with the National Park Authority to more clearly detail the commitment that both 
organisations have to each other, including the provision of resources and 
services. The current MoU extends essentially to the provision of time from the 
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Authority’s fundraising officer and therefore this request appears sensible to 
enable both parties to understand their accountabilities. 

4.3 Longer-term there remains a debate about whether the Trust should ultimately 
become a fully-fledged stand-alone entity in much the same vein as the 
Yorkshire Dales Millennium Trust. For the time being, Trustees believe that 
retaining proximity to the Authority is desirable.  

5. Future resources 

5.1 The Trust currently employs (through the Authority) a part-time administrator (1 
day per week) and pays for 1 day per week of the Authority’s fundraising officer 
time. The Authority has also provided ad hoc support to the Trust in the form of 
time from various officers, communications, legal and financial support. For a 6-
month period, the Authority has also seconded a member of staff to act as part 
time co-ordinator of the Trust. As Chair of the Trust, the Authority’s CEO has 
latterly committed substantial time to leading the strategic review. 

5.2 As indicated above, Trustees believe that the charity must invest in order to 
ensure dedicated leadership and resource exists within the organisation to drive 
forward its ambitions. It will therefore seek to recruit a part-time Director, to be 
employed via the Authority and buy-in some part time communications support 
to bolster its ability to proactively communicate. This is a significant move and 
one that will enable the Trust to be more ambitious, to draw in more funding to 
support positive outcomes in the National Park and become less dependent on 
the Authority. 

5.3 The Trust requests that specific resources continue to be made available via the 
Authority for reasons of efficiency. These include, but are not limited to, IT, HR, 
Finance, Legal, fundraising and broader project management. Given the benefit 
the Authority is able to draw from having a close charitable partner, these should 
be supported and confirmed within a new MOU with the Trust. 

6. Financial and staffing implications 

6.1 The proposals are likely to reduce the net impact on Authority staff of supporting 
the work of the Trust. The financial impact is neutral. 

7. Contribution to National Park Management Plan 

7.1 The proposals support all areas of the current Management Plan as well as the 
Authority’s Business Plan commitment to maintain external income of at least 
£1.5m per annum. 

8. Legal and sustainability implications 

8.1 None 

9. Recommendation  

9.1 That Members note the Trust’s priorities for 2021-26.  
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9.2 That Members agree to Officers working with the Trust to redraft the current 
Memorandum of Understanding to be more specific, codify the relationship and 
commitments of both partners and delegate final agreement to the Authority’s 
CEO and Head of Corporate Services. 

Contact Officer: 
Tom Hind 
Chief Executive  
01439 772700 
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